\




-

02....... Corporate Information

03 ....... Profile of Directors

06 ....... Profile of Key Management

09 ....... Management Discussion and Analysis

28 ....... Corporate Governance Overview Statement

50 ....... Audit Committee Report

57 ....... Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
67....... Sustainability Statement

110 ....... Financial Statements

188 ....... List of Properties

189 ....... Analysis of Shareholdings
191 ....... Notice of the 20th Annual Gene

Proxy Form



Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS : Mr. Sai Chin Hock (Executive Director)
Mr. Sai Han Siong (Chief Executive Director)
Mr. Siow Kee Yen (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Tan Chin Hwee (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Sai Ah Sai (Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

AUDIT COMMITTEE Mr. Siow Kee Yen (Chairman)
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin
Mr. Tan Chin Hwee

BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT Mr. Tan Chin Hwee (Chairman)
COMMITTEE Mr. Siow Kee Yen
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE Mr. Siow Kee Yen (Chairman)
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin
Mr. Tan Chin Hwee

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin (Chairperson)
Mr. Siow Kee Yen
Mr. Tan Chin Hwee

COMPANY SECRETARIES Ms. Chua Siew Chuan (MAICSA 0777689)
SSM PC No.: 201908002648
Ms. Yau Jye Yee (MAICSA 7059233)
SSM PC No.: 202008000733

REGISTERED OFFICE No. 60-1, Jalan Lagenda 5, Taman 1 Lagenda,
75400 Melaka.
Tel: 606-2880220 Fax: 606-2880570

CORPORATE OFFICE No. 8998, Kawasan Perindustrian Peringkat IV,
Batu Berendam, 75350 Melaka.
Tel: 606-3355888 Fax: 606-3356988
Website: www.ornapaper.com

SHARE REGISTRAR Aldpro Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.
202101043817 (1444117-M)
Level 5, Block B, Dataran PHB, Saujana Resort,
Section U2, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor.
Tel: 603-7890 0638 Fax: 603-7890 1032
Email: admin@aldpro.com.my

AUDITORS Crowe Malaysia PLT
201906000005 (LLP0018817-LCA) & AF 1018
Chartered Accountants
52, Jalan Kota Laksamana 2/15
Taman Kota Laksamana, Seksyen 2,
75200 Melaka.
Tel: 606-2825995 Fax: 606-2836449

PRINCIPAL BANKER RHB Islamic Bank Berhad

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

02 | Annual Report 2021



Profile of Directors

Mr Sai Chin Hock

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation/ Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Work experience
Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries

Family relationship with any directors and/ or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

Mr Tan Chin Hwee

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation / Position in the Company

Date of appointment
Qualification

Work experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers

Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries

Family relationship with any directors and / or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

173

: Malaysian

: Male

: Executive Director

: 26 January 2010

: Bachelor of Commerce Degree from Nanyang

University Singapore

: Managing in various industries
: None

: Direct — Nil

: Indirect — 22,693,874 shares

: Uncle of Sai Han Siong and brother of Sai Ah Sai
: None
: None

: 56

: Malaysian

: Male

: Independent Non-Executive Director; Chairman of

Board Risk Management Committee; Member of
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee

: 22 January 2014
: Member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants;

Bachelor of Accounting from University of Malaya

: Audit Senior in Coopers & Lybrand (1991 to 1995);

Manager in Ample Consult Sdn Bhd (1996 to 2000);
Director of Ornapaper Industry (Batu Pahat) Sdn
Bhd (1999 to 2008); Group financial controller of
Ornapaper Berhad (2005 to 2007); Manager in KC
Chia & Noor (2008 to 2013); Director of PI
Secretarial Sdn Bhd (2015 - present)

: None
» Nil

: None
: None
: None
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Profile of Directors

Mr Siow Kee Yen

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation / Position in the Company

Date of appointment
Qualification

Work experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries

Family relationship with any directors and / or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation/ Position in the Company

Date of appointment
Qualification

Work experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries

Family relationship with any directors and/ or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years
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151

: Malaysian

: Male

: Independent Non-Executive Director; Chairman of

Audit Committee and Nomination Committee;
Member of Remuneration Committee and Board
Risk Management Committee

: 2 December 2002
: Member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants;

Honours Degree in Bachelor of Accountancy

: Audit Senior in Arthur Andersen & Co. (1996-1999);

Audit Manager with Chin & Co. (2000-2001); Partner
of KY Siow & Co. (since 2001-2019); KY Siow & Co.
PLT (since 2020)

: None
: Direct - 30,500 shares
. Indirect - Nil

:None
: None
:None

183

: Malaysian

: Female

: Independent Non-Executive Director; Chairperson

of Remuneration Committee; Member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Board
Risk Management Committee

: 2 December 2002
: LL.B (Honours) Nottingham University

Barrister-At-Law (Middle Temple London)

: English Bar & Malaysian Bar (1993 &1994);

Advocate & Solicitor with Adillah A. Nordin (present)

: None
: Direct - 34,000 shares
. Indirect - Nil

: None
: None
: None



Profile of Directors

Mr Sai Han Siong

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation / Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Work experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries

Family relationship with any directors and / or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

Mr Sai Ah Sai

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation / Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Work experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries

Family relationship with any directors and / or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

1562

: Malaysian

: Male

: Chief Executive Director

: 27 May 2016

: Singapore-Cambridge Certificate - GCE 0 Level

Federal Institute of Technology - Civil Engineering
Diploma; City and Guilds of London Institute -
Certificate in Concrete practice

: Supervisor in Sungai Way Construction Sdn Bhd

(1995); Manager in Mega Quarry Products Sdn Bhd
(1996-1999); Director of Mega Quarry Products Sdn
Bhd (2000-present)

: None
: Direct — 15,000 shares
: Indirect — 23,276,198 shares

: Nephew of Sai Chin Hock and son of Sai Ah Sai
:None
:None

185

: Malaysian

: Male

: Director

:01 Jan 2018

: Director of Perfect Food Manufacturing (M) Sdn Bhd

(1995 to present); Director of Mega Quarry Products
Sdn Bhd (2012 to present); Director of Julie’s
Manufacturing Sdn Bhd (2005 to present)

: None
: Direct — 120,000 shares
: Indirect — 24,340,698 shares

: Brother of Sai Chin Hock and father of Sai Han Siong
:None
:None

Annual Report 2021

05



Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Profile of Key Management

Name

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation /Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Working experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Family relationship with any directors and / or
major shareholders of the Company
Conflict of interest with the Company
List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

Name

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation /Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Working experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Family relationship with any directors and / or
major shareholders of the Company
Conflict of interest with the Company
List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years
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: Lim Joo Song

: 51

: Malaysian

: Male

: Chief Operations Officer

: 31 Mar 2010

: Degree Holder of Political Science In National

Taiwan University

: Sales Executive - Ornapaper Industry (Batu

Pahat) Sdn Bhd (1998 - 2001)

Sales Manager - Ornapaper Industry (Batu
Pahat) Sdn Bhd (2001 - 2005)

General Manager - Ornapaper Industry (Batu
Pahat) Sdn Bhd (2005 - 2009)

Chief Operations Officer - Ornapaper Industry
(M) Sdn Bhd (2020 - present)

- Nil

- Nil
- Nil
- Nil

: Bung Choon Kong

162

: Malaysian

: Male

: General Manager

: 1 Aug 2009

: MCE

: Sales Supervisor - Eng Shuen Paper Industrial

Co. (M) Sdn Bhd (1991 - 1992)

Sales Executive - Eng Shuen Paper Industrial
Co. (M) Sdn Bhd (1992 - 1994)

Sales Manager - Eng Shuen Paper Industrial
Co. (M) Sdn Bhd (1994 - 1998)

Sales Manager - Ornapaper Industry (Perak)
Sdn Bhd (1998 - 2007)

Regional Manager - Ornapaper Industry (Perak)
Sdn Bhd (2007 - 2009)

General Manager - Ornapaper Industry (Perak)
Sdn Bhd (2020 - present)

- Nil

- Nil
- Nil
- Nil



Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Profile of Key Management

Name

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation /Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Working Experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Family relationship with any directors and / or
major shareholders of the Company
Conflict of interest with the Company
List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

Name

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation /Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Working Experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Family relationship with any directors and / or
major shareholders of the Company
Conflict of interest with the Company
List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years

: Foo Chee Juin

: 67

: Malaysian

: Male

: Director/General Manager

: 1 Aug 1999

: Higher School Certificate 1975 English College

Johor Bahru (1968 - 1974)
Associate Member of Institute of Bankers
(London) (1975 - 1980)

: Company Secretary - Pl Chua & Co. Sdn Bhd

(1980 - 1989)

Corporate General Manager - Polyplus Holding
Berhad (1989 - 1995)

Corporate General Manager - Century Bonds
Sdn Bhd (1995 - 1997)

Director - Genesis Packages Sdn Bhd
(1997-1999)

Director/General Manager - Ornapaper Industry
(Johor) Sdn Bhd (1 Aug 1999 - present)

- Nil

- Nil
- Nil
= Nil

: Alan Kang Chee Hwee

49

: Malaysian

: Male

: Assistant General Manager

1 1 January 2012

: SPM

: Administration Officer - PCCS (1996 - 1997)

Operating Officer - Hotel Carnival (1997 - 1998)
Sales Executive - Fliplex Sdn Bhd (1998 - 2000)
Production Planner - Chiga Light Industry

(2000 - 2003)

Sales Executive - Ornapaper Industry (Batu
Pahat) Sdn Bhd (2003 - 2005)

Senior Sales Executive - Ornapaper Industry
(Batu Pahat) Sdn Bhd (2005 - 2010)

Asst. Sales Manager - Ornapaper Industry (Batu
Pahat) Sdn Bhd (2010 - 2011)

Asst. General Manager - Ornapaper Industry
(Batu Pahat) Sdn Bhd (2012 - Present)

> Nil

> Nil
> Nil
- Nil
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Profile of Key Management

Name

Age

Nationality

Gender

Designation /Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Working experience

Directorship in other Public Companies & listed issuers
Family relationship with any directors and / or
major shareholders of the Company
Conflict of interest with the Company
List of conviction for offences within the past 5 years
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: Teng Say Yeong

: 55

: Malaysian

: Male

: General Manager

11 Jul 2009

: SPM

: Material Analysis Officer - Thomsam Audio,

Muar (1986 - 1990)

Director - Toli Packaging (KL) Sdn Bhd

(1992 - 1996)

Director - Tripack Packaging (M) Sdn Bhd

(1996 - 2006)

Sales Manager - Tripack Packaging (M) Sdn Bhd
(2006 - 2009)

General Manager - Tripack Packaging (M) Sdn Bhd
(1 Jul 2009 - present)

= Nil

= Nil
= Nil
= Nil




Ornapaper Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP’S BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Ornapaper Berhad (“Ornapaper”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) started its corporate journey with the
incorporation of Ornapaper Industry (M) Sdn. Bhd. on 24 July 1990 with its humble beginning in rented premises
for the commencement of business activity as a manufacturer of corrugated cartons. Riding on the economic
boom in the early 90’s and with a continuous investment programme, a new high-technology production and
development facility was made available in October 1996. The Group then expanded its operation to become
a corrugated board manufacturer and Ornapaper Berhad was listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), the Kuala Lumpur stock exchange in 2002.

The Group is involved in the manufacturing of corrugated boards and cartons boxes (paper packaging),
paper-based stationery products as well as provision of logistics services in Malaysia. Ornapaper is operating
through its wholly owned subsidiaries in Malaysia, namely, Ornapaper Industry (M) Sdn. Bhd., Ornapaper
Industry (Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd., Ornapaper Industry (Perak) Sdn. Bhd., Tripack Packaging (M) Sdn. Bhd.,
Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Bhd. and Ornapaper Logistics Sdn. Bhd., as well as its partly owned subsidiary, namely,
Ornapaper Industry (Johor) Sdn. Bhd.

Ornapaper Logistics Sdn. Bhd. is a logistics company established and commenced its business operation since
August 2017 to fulfil internal transportation needs of the Group. The revenue contribution of the logistics
company to the Group’s revenue in 2021 remained insignificant at approximately 0.7%. As for Quantum Rhythm
Sdn. Bhd. which is primarily involved in the manufacturing of paper-based stationery products, it contributed
approximately 4% of the Group’s total revenue consistently for the past few years from both local (approximately
70% of Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Bhd.’s sales) and export (approximately 30% of Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Bhd.’s
sales) markets.

Whereas, the rest of the subsidiaries that contributed to more than 90% of the Group’s revenue are principally
engaged in the design, manufacturing and sales of corrugated boards and carton boxes, serving the packaging
needs of various industries in Malaysia, namely, electronics and electrical (“E&E”), foods and beverages
(“F&B”), furniture, textile and garments, rubber and plastic, hardware and steel, chemical products, sports and
agriculture industry as well as other stand-alone converters who do not own a corrugator plant.

The Group specialises in delivering customised corrugated cartons and value-added solution to our customers
with our industry expertise in a rapidly changing marketplace. There are a wide range of selection of corrugated
box types produced by the Group, such as, regular slotted cartons (“RSC”), top and bottom (“T&B”), five panel
folder (“FPF”), half slotted carton (“HSC”), full overlap slotted carton (“FOL”), L shape, H shape, nesting,
corrugated pads and die-cut products. The Group also supplies measuring cardboard boxes and corrugated
flutes comprising single face, single wall, double wall and triple wall corrugated sheetboard to fulfil different
industry needs.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is one of the largest manufacturers and suppliers of corrugated boards and cartons in Malaysia,
supplying corrugated boards and packaging products of superior quality through strict adherence to quality
and environmental standards in compliance with ISO 9001 Quality Assurance Manual and ISO 14001:2015
accreditations. The Quality Assurance laboratories of the Group are equipped with various precision test
equipment and apparatus in facilitating the Quality Assurance team to ensure the quality standards are met at
all stages of production for delivery to customers. The Group is working aggressively in exploiting all potential
synergies to improve and maintain high product quality and service efficiency. The Group is mindful that
improving quality is the key to improving performance and performance is the yardstick of quality. Constant
improvement to machinery and production technology has enhanced the Group's competitive edge over others
in the industry.

The Group aims to be a leading provider of packaging and related solutions serving the packaging needs of the
modern manufacturing sector, through improving and strengthening the Group’s operational core competency.
Most of the Group’s products are manufactured in accordance with customers’ specifications and requirements.
With the vision of “To be the best business partner for its customers”, the Group is offering greatest quality
products and outstanding customer service while achieving optimal cost and sales value equilibrium for long
term sustainability. This could be achieved through production optimisation coupled with the recruitment and
training of a competent workforce as well as sourcing for high quality but reasonably priced raw materials from
credible local vendors to deliver value added products for the customers.

Armed with the application of modern technologies and innovation in manufacturing automation, the Group is
capable of producing high quality corrugated boards and packaging products that meet customers’ needs and
satisfaction as well as lifting the packaging standards within the industry in Malaysia. Its existing facilities
throughout Malaysia enable the Group to produce approximately 115,000 metric tonnes of corrugated boards
and cartons per annum. Strategic service points have been set up in many states in Peninsula Malaysia
to provide services and products with the highest possible quality aiming at complete customer satisfaction
and delight. The Group prides itself as a supplier of superior products, with excellent customer service and
reasonable pricing offered as its fundamentals, thus gaining supports from all its wide-ranging customers. As
such, based on progressive management techniques and strong teamwork, we set the goals for continuous
improvement in technical know-how and professionalism.

Besides, the Group also intends to co-exist with the society as a guardian of our environment in promoting the
recycling program and practicing proper waste control management, which boost the long-term sustainability of
the Group’s businesses and operations. As the operating environment of the industry becomes increasingly
complex, the Group is progressing towards leveraging on teamwork to attain extraordinary results over the long
term. Nonetheless, integrity, transparency, objectivity and accountability are essential to the organisation’s work
culture in order to enhance the efficient and effective teamwork and communication amongst employees in
driving the Group to success and grow beyond.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Amidst another challenging year as the market and economy are impacted by uncertainties in the global
economic outlook particularly with the recent unprecedented global COVID-19 pandemic that has changed the
rhythm of the globe and caused much disruptions to almost all sectors of economies worldwide coupled with
various stringent lockdown measures enforced by many countries including Malaysia, the overall business
performance of the Group continues to be positive. Nevertheless, the Group adopts a conservative approach in
ensuring its balance sheet remains healthy and continuously monitoring its costs and cash flow management,
maintaining its presence in the market and improving operating efficiency.

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND OPERATION REVIEW

Financial Year Ended 31 December 2021 (“2021”) compared with Financial Year Ended 31 December
2020 (“2020”)

L’:ﬂ’g;’o" s el ee FYE 2017 FYE2018 FYE2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021
REVENUE 330,609 349,853 331,580 313398 316,354
GROSS PROFIT 60,636 41,986 48,884 49172 36,455
PROFIT AFTER TAX * 15,536 9,429 13210 14,425 5,050
NET ASSET 157,642 165,501 176,988 189,204 191,908
NET ASSET PER SHARE (RM) ** 2.13 2.23 2.39 2.55 2.59
EPS BASIC (SEN) 21.0 12.7 17.8 19.5 6.8
DIVIDEND PER SHARE (SEN) 25 25 3.0 3.25 2.0

* Attributable to Owners of Parent.
** Exclude Treasury Shares.

REVENUE
YEAR 2017 ~ YEAR 2021

(RM '000)
MYR 360,000
MYR 350,000
MYR 340,000
MYR 330,000
MYR 320,000
MYR 310,000

FYE 2017 FYE 2018 FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

PROFIT AFTER TAX
YEAR 2017 ~ YEAR 2021
(RM '000)

MYR 16,000

MYR 12,000
MYR 8,000
MYR 4,000 l:
MYR 0 . : : :

FYE 2017 FYE 2018 FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021

NET ASSET
YEAR 2017 ~ YEAR 2021
(RM '000)
MYR 200,000
MYR 190,000
MYR 180,000
MYR 170,000
MYR 160,000
MYR 150,000 J

FYE 2017 FYE 2018 FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021
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Ornapaper Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Company No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

NET ASSET/SHARE
YEAR 2017 ~ YEAR 2021
(RM)
039 2.55 2.59
2'13 2.23 )
FYE 2017 FYE 2018 FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021
EPS BASIC
YEAR 2017 ~ YEAR 2021
(SEN)
{
FYE 2021 6.8
FYE 2020 19.5
FYE 2019 17.8
FYE 2018 12.7
FYE 2017 21.0
l l l l
0 5 10 15 20 25
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

DIVIDEND PER SHARE
YEAR 2017 ~ YEAR 2021
(SEN)

4.00

3.00 - /l//.\\\.

2.00

1.00

0.00

FYE2017 FYE2018 FYE2019 FYE2020 FYE 2021

Revenue, Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit Margin

The COVID-19 pandemic that has been ongoing for two years persisted to cause significant impacts to all
markets worldwide in year 2021. The lingering COVID-19 pandemic with oscillation between the gradually
relaxed and re-tightening of movement restrictions due to the fluctuated infectivity and vaccination rates,
coupled with the on-going trade spat between the major economic powerhouses and domestic political
uncertainty, have brought about substantial disruptions to businesses and slower global economic recovery.

In spite of the challenging business environment with slower economic momentum, the Group managed to
remain resilient by generating a revenue of RM 316.354 million for 2021, an increase of approximately RM 2.956
million as compared to the preceding year’s revenue of RM 313.398 million. Such growth was primarily
contributed by the paper packaging division of the Group. The paper packaging division remained to form the
mainstay of the Group’s business, demonstrated by its sales contribution of more than 90% of the Group’s total
revenue in 2021. Similar with 2020, F&B industry, E&E industry and furniture industry remained as the top three
(3) sectors the Group was serving, accounted for approximately 50% of the Group’s sales in 2021.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

The increase in our Group’s revenue for the year was primarily driven by the increase in average selling price
of paper packaging product by approximately 12% from 2020 to 2021, as a result of the continuous cost
pass-through efforts by the Group’s Sales and Marketing team in dealing with the increasing raw materials costs
which was affected by the limited supply of paper rolls. Besides, the improved product mix structure by
improving the premium cartons’ contribution to the overall sales composition as well as the customisation of
corrugated cartons and value-added solutions provided to customers also contributed to the increase in average
selling price. Nevertheless, the sales volume recorded a decrease by approximately 10% from 2020 to 2021,
which was mainly attributable to the unprecedented disruptions on the Group’s business activities and the
operations of some of our customers amidst the global COVID-19 pandemic.

Besides, the increase in average selling price in 2021 was in tandem with the increase in average purchase
price of paper roll (per metric tonne (“MT”")) by approximately 27% compared to the previous financial year.
Paper roll is the highest cost component of both the paper packaging and paper-based stationery products.
Hence, the Group’s cost of goods sold demonstrated an increase by approximately RM 15.673 million or 6%,
from RM 264.226 million for 2020 to RM 279.899 million for 2021, despite lesser consumption of paper roll in
2021 as a result of lower sales volume obtained during the year.

On overall, the gross profit margin of the Group slightly decreased from 16% in 2020 to 12% in 2021, mainly due
to the greater increase in costs of goods sold as compared to the increase in revenue generated by the Group
from 2020 to 2021, as a result of the price hike and tight supply of raw materials. The impact of such cost
upsurge was slightly lessened by the continuous cost pass-through exercises by the Sales and Marketing
Department of respective operating subsidiaries as explained above.

Costs and Expenses

(a) Overall administrative and other expenses increased from RM 22.723 million for 2020 to RM 25.302
million for 2021, representing an increment of approximately RM 2.579 million or 11%, mainly due to the
impairment losses on plant and equipment as well as right-of-use assets during the year amounted to
approximately RM 1.244 million and RM1 million respectively. Additionally, such increment was further
supported by the higher COVID-19 related expenses and hostel expenses incurred by the Group for the
safety and well-being of the employees in combating the COVID-19 pandemic.

(b) Selling and marketing expenses decreased by approximately RM 0.404 million or 8%, from RM 5.044
million for 2020 to RM 4.640 million for 2021, mainly due to the decrease in sales commission paid to sales
personnel during the year as a result of lower sales volume and deliveries to customers as aforementioned
following the negative impacts and disruptions from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Other Income

Other income increased from RM 2.511 million for 2020 to RM 3.056 million for 2021, by approximately
RM 0.545 million or 22%, primarily contributed by the increase in other operating income during the year by
approximately RM 0.707 million or 51% from RM 1.389 million for 2020 to RM 2.096 million for 2021. The
increase in other operating income was mainly contributed by the wage subsidy received from PERKESO during
the year, amounted to approximately RM 1.032 million, under the Wage Subsidy Programme following the
announcement by the Malaysia’s Prime Minister on additional measures for the PRIHATIN economic stimulus
package in a bid to soften the impact of the lockdowns imposed by the Malaysia government.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company reduced by approximately RM 9.375 million or 65% from
RM 14.425 million for 2020 to RM 5.050 million for 2021. Such decrease was primarily due to the lower gross
profit margin with higher costs of goods sold compared to preceding year, as a result of the higher costs of raw
materials, especially paper rolls, incurred by the Group during the year as well as the lower sales volume in 2021
due to the lingering impact of the pandemic. Nevertheless, the impact was slightly reduced by the continuous
cost pass-through efforts performed in view of the increased costs of raw materials.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-Of-Use Assets

Property, plant and equipment as well as right-of-use assets of the Group recorded a decrease of approximately
RM 10.812 million or 9% from RM 115.556 million in 2020 to RM 104.744 million in 2021. The decrease was
primarily due to the following:

(i) higherimpairment losses on plant and equipment as well as right-of-use assets recognised during the year,
amounted to approximately RM 2.244 million in 2021 as compared to RM 0.800 million in 2020; and

(i) lesserinvestment in additional machineries and other production equipment by the Group during the year.

Inventories

Inventories of the Group recorded an increase of approximately RM 15.284 million or 29% from RM 52.495
million in 2020 to RM 67.779 million in 2021. The increase was primarily due to the upsurge in costs of raw
materials, especially paper rolls, as compared to the preceding financial year, in consequence of the limited
supply of paper notwithstanding the lower volume of paper rolls purchased in 2021 considering the lower sales
volume secured from customers during the year. Therefore, the inventory turnover days (average inventories
divided by total costs of goods sold for the year) increased slightly from averagely 74 days in 2020 to averagely
78 days in 2021.

The Management continues to take initiative to stringent the procurement and inventory management process
of the Group with strict monitoring of raw materials, especially paper rolls, following the severe disruptions from
the COVID-19 pandemic. There was no write-down of inventories as the Group adopted First-In-First-Out
approach for its inventory management and closed monitoring of its inventory levels.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables of the Group recorded a decrease by approximately RM 1.349 million or 2% from RM 79.779
million in 2020 to RM 78.430 million in 2021. Such decrease was mainly contributed by the improved collections
from customers following discounts given to customers for prompt payments made. The trade receivables
turnover days (average trade receivables divided by total sales for the year) improved slightly from averagely 92
days in 2020 to averagely 91 days in 2021 despite the overall weak and challenging business and market
sentiment worldwide and the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic. The Group made every effort in managing
its sales with prudent and conservative credit measures in view of the weak market sentiment as well as
uncertainties from the global pandemic.
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Other Current Assets

Other current assets of the Group increased from RM 2.649 million in 2020 to RM 7.509 million in 2021,
representing an increase of approximately RM 4.860 million or 183%. The increase was mainly contributed by
higher progressive payments and deposits made to vendors in 2021 amounted to RM 5.846 million compared
to 2020 at approximately RM 0.799 million, for purchases of property, plant and equipment for planned upgrade
exercise.

Trade and Other Payables

(i)  The trade payables balances increased from RM 25.236 million in 2020 to RM 28.959 million in 2021, by
approximately RM 3.723 million or 15%, mainly due to prudent working capital management practiced by
the management. Therefore, there was a marginal increase in the trade payables turnover days (average
trade payables divided by total purchases for the year) from averagely 32 days in 2020 to averagely 35
days in 2021.

(i)  The other payables balances decreased by approximately RM 3.756 million or 22% from RM 16.872

million in 2020 to RM 13.116 million in 2021, mainly due to lesser outstanding balances owed to vendors
for purchases of machineries by approximately RM 2.328 million.

Loans and Borrowings

The total short-term and long-term loans and borrowings of the Group increased by approximately RM 2.300
million or 4% from RM 64.145 million in 2020 to RM 66.445 million in 2021. The increment was primarily due to
the higher banker acceptance facilities utilised by the Group for purchases of paper rolls during the year.

Lease Liabilities
On overall, the current and non-current lease liabilities of the Group decreased by approximately RM 1.939
million or 19% from RM 10.344 million in 2020 to RM 8.405 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly attribut-

able to the repayment of hire purchases for purchases of machineries and rental of factory during the year
without any drawdown of lease liabilities as compared to year 2020.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Capital Expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure and working capital requirements were financed by, firstly, cash generated
from operations and secondly, long-term debt financing and working capital financing provided by the financial
institutions. It is the Group’s policy that capital expenditure to be financed by long-term debt financing
corresponding to the gestation period of the capital investment project. Major capital expenditures incurred
during the financial year were plant and machineries upgrade and capacity expansion projects to improve
production capacity and efficiency. The capital expenditures incurred during the financial year were financed
by internally generated funds and long-term debt financing. The Group will continue to carry out plant and
machineries upgrades at respective operating subsidiaries to facilitate production capacity expansion and to
improve production efficiency in near future in order to maintain our competitiveness.

Annual Report 2021

17



Ornapaper Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Management Discussion and Analysis

From working capital aspect, the Group continued to demonstrate its ability to maintain its working capital
liquidity by paying its current liabilities with cash collected from its current assets generated from its business
operations. The Group was able to maintain its current ratio at 1.90 times in 2021 as compared to 1.80 times in
the preceding financial year. Meanwhile, the acid test ratio of the Group was relatively stable with minimal
decrease from 1.33 times in 2020 to 1.30 times in 2021.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased slightly from RM 58.193 million as at 31 December 2020 to RM 53.008
million as at 31 December 2021. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was mainly attributable to the lower
net cash inflow generated from operating activities by the Group at RM 10.671 million in 2021 compared to RM
39.010 million in the preceding financial year. This was mainly attributable to the increase in inventories during
the year due to higher average purchase price of raw materials, especially paper rolls, as well as the increase
in trade and other payables in 2021 as compared to 2020 as a result of prudent working capital management
practiced by the management.

Additionally, the decrease in cash and cash equivalents was also partly contributed by the upsurge in net cash
flows used in financing activities, which recorded a net cash outflow of RM 5.942 million in 2021 compared to
RM 4.043 million in 2020. This was mainly due to no drawdown of term loans and lease liabilities in 2021
compared to 2020. However, such upsurge was reduced by the higher net drawdown of bankers’ acceptances
during the year. On the other hand, the decrease in cash and cash equivalents was mitigated by the lower net
cash flows used in investing activities which was reduced from RM 14.307 million in 2020 to RM 9.909 million in
2021. The decreased net cash outflow was primarily due to the decrease in fixed deposits placed with licensed
banks in 2021 compared to the previous financial year.

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

The debt-to-equity ratio (net debt divided by shareholders’ equity plus net debt) of the Group as at 31 December
2021 remained healthy at 24% notwithstanding the increase from 22% as at 31 December 2020. Higher
debt-to-equity ratio of the Group during the financial year of 2021 was mainly attributable to the lower cash and
bank balances as at the end of the current financial year as compared to previous financial year as a result of
the factors explained above.

REVIEW OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES

In RM'000 (unless otherwise stated) FYE 2017 FYE 2018 FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021
GROSS PROFIT MARGIN (%) 18% 12% 15% 16% 12%
EBITDA MARGIN (%) 1% 9% 1% 12% 8%
REVENUE PER AVERAGE EMPLOYEE 382 372 336 314 338
EBITDA PER AVERAGE EMPLOYEE 41 32 36 39 27
leplﬂ\)A(I)aER OF AVERAGE EMPLOYEE 865 940 986 998 936
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There are two (2) core operating segments that the Group is involved in, i.e. paper packaging business and
paper-based stationery products. The lower gross profit margin of 12% in 2021 was mainly attributable to the
higher average purchase price of raw materials, especially paper rolls, over the increase in average selling price
during 2021. Albeit the surge of average purchase price of paper roll throughout the year, effort was putting in to
improve the production efficiency in driving down the unit manufacturing cost along with the continuous cost
pass-through exercises by the Sales and Marketing Department of respective operating subsidiaries. Hence,
the average revenue generated per average employee of the Group demonstrated positive growth from
approximately RM 0.314 million in 2020 to approximately RM 0.338 million in 2021.

The Group is developing its business growth through the organic growth strategy, which includes building its
revenue and bottom line by increasing and maintaining its customer base, reinvesting profits made as well as
improving capacity utilisation and efficiency by enhancing the plants’ capacity utilisation with dedicated and
skilful workforce in reducing the unit manufacturing cost possible. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to look
for and seize the opportunity to embark on mergers or acquisitions should the target company offers good
income accretive potential, value added proposition and complement the existing products produced by the
Group, justified by reasonable entry price.

(i)  Paper Packaging

The paper packaging segment of the Group is operated through its five (5) subsidiaries, namely,
Ornapaper Industry (M) Sdn. Bhd., Ornapaper Industry (Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd., Ornapaper Industry
(Perak) Sdn. Bhd., Ornapaper Industry (Johor) Sdn. Bhd. and Tripack Packaging (M) Sdn. Bhd. For the
past five (5) financial years, the revenue (before intercompany sales elimination) generated by the paper
packaging segment demonstrated positive growth, except for 2019 and 2020. There was slight increment
in revenue by approximately 3% from RM 334.208 million in 2020 to RM 345.561 million in 2021, generally
resulted from the higher average selling price offered to the customers in recompensing the aftermath of
increase in costs of paper rolls due to the paper shortage.

Therefore, costs of goods sold (before intercompany purchases elimination) also reported corresponding
increase trend throughout the financial years, except for 2019 and 2020. It has increased by approximately
8% from RM 285.617 million in 2020 to RM 308.849 million in 2021. Paper roll is one of the core raw
materials for the production of corrugated boards, hence, the upsurge of average purchase price of paper
rolls definitely raised the costs of goods sold and impacted the profit margin of the Group. Hence, the
gross profit margin of the Group’s paper packaging segment recorded slight fluctuation throughout the
financial years, at a range of 11% to 16%, whereby 2017 recorded the highest margin of approximately
16% while 2018 and 2021 recorded the lowest margin of approximately 11%.

During the financial year, three (3) types of industries served by the Group contributed approximately 50%
to the Group of the total revenue in 2021, whereby approximately 21% of the revenue was generated
from the F&B industry, approximately 15% of the revenue was generated from the E&E industry and
approximately 14% of the revenue was generated from the furniture industry. The revenue contribution
from these three (3) types of industries for 2021 were relatively consistent as compared to the sales
contribution in 2020.

On the other hand, the administrative and other expenses recorded an increment by approximately 9%
from RM 20.506 million in 2020 to RM 22.326 million in 2021, mainly due to the impairment losses on plant
and equipment during the year as well as the higher COVID-19 related expenses and hostel expenses
incurred by the Group for the safety and well-being of the employees in combating the COVID-19
pandemic.
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For the past five (5) financial years from 2017 to 2021, profits before tax generated from the paper
packaging segment presented healthy position, except for 2018 and 2021 with a lesser profit before tax
earned as compared to 2017 and 2020 respectively. The profit before tax recorded a decrease from RM
22.979 million in 2020 to RM 11.545 million in 2021 due to the explanations aforementioned despite the
challenging and volatile global market conditions, uncertainties arising from the COVID-19 pandemic as
well as weak consumer sentiments during 2021.

(ii) Paper-Based Stationery

The paper-based stationery segment of the Group is operated by Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Bhd.
(“Quantum”). Quantum generated its revenue from sales of manufacturing products which consist of office
products and stationery paper products as well as sales of trading items, with the revenue contributions of
approximately 10%, 74% and 16% respectively to the total revenue of Quantum in 2021.

The revenue generated by Quantum recorded growth from 2017 to 2018, and subsequently demonstrated
a decrease in revenue generated from 2019 to 2021. The revenue was decreased by approximately 25%
from RM 20.640 million in 2020 to RM 15.448 million in 2021, mainly due to the decrease in overall sales
volume by approximately 35% from 2020 to 2021, particularly the sales of stationery paper products for
schools’ usage and sales of trading items to printers operating companies. The sales of stationery paper
products and trading items were affected badly as schools and printers operating companies were
required to be closed due to the lockdowns implemented by the Malaysian government as well as the
various lockdown measures imposed by Malaysia government and many other countries that resulted in
such demand shrinkage. Consequent to the decrease in revenue generated by Quantum during the year,
the costs of goods sold incurred by Quantum decreased too by approximately 23% from RM 20.809 million
in 2020 to RM 16.116 million in 2021.

On the other hand, other expenses recorded an increment from RM 1.205 million in 2020 to RM 2.014

million in 2021, by approximately RM 0.809 million or 67%, mainly due to the higher impairment losses on
plant and equipment as well as right-of-use assets during the year.

RISK FACTORS EXPOSURE

There are several risks that the Group is exposed to in operating its core businesses of manufacturing and
trading of paper packaging and paper-based stationery products, detailed as follows:

(i) Economic Risk

Bring forward the uncertain global economic condition from the prior years with pronounced slowdown of
global economy growth resulted from tit-for-tat trade war situation between economy powerhouses,
significant fluctuation of crude oil price, persistent supply-chain bottlenecks and inflationary pressures,
elevated financial vulnerabilities in large swaths of the world as well as the unprecedented global outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic are among the factors that led to challenging market conditions and hasten the
possibility of imminent global recession which many economists foresee long overdue. With global
recession a forgone conclusion coupled with various uncertainties mentioned, challenges are abounded
in such negative economic condition while recovery is anticipated and expected in year 2022 at the
earliest period following the current situation with mass vaccination programme executed to help to curb
the COVID-19 infections.
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(ii)

(iii)

The challenges involved include slower sales due to weakening demand and soft consumer sentiment,
tightening of working capital availability, cost pressure due to lower permissible production capacity
consequent to the lockdowns imposed by the Malaysian government to restrict movement in order to
counter the COVID-19 pandemic in Malaysia. In spite of various challenges aforementioned that affect the
business operations of the Group, the Management had undertook various measures, such as, proactive
and prompt actions to resume production at permissible level, closely follow up with the customers to
preserve the existing sales by the Group arising from the triple headwinds, closed monitoring of the
collections from the customers, prudent working capital planning and cash preservation measures,
reasonable cost cutting measures, obtained financial assistance via the stimulus packages introduced by
the Malaysian government, imposed strict safety and health measures to prevent the spread of COVID-19
in the factory premises.

Foreign Currency Risk

In the near foreseeable future, stemming from the imminent global recession as well as the uncertainties
from the COVID-19 pandemic that severely affected the global economy condition, we expect the
operating environment the Group faces will be challenging and intense, especially in the context of the
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) against United States Dollar (“USD”) and these developments may affect the
Group’s profit margin. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales of
paper-based stationery products as well as purchases of raw materials, i.e. paper rolls and machineries
that were transacted in USD as a result of strengthening of USD against RM.

The Group does not practice any active hedging of foreign currency due to unpredictable fluctuation of
foreign currency, especially in this volatile economic condition. The management of foreign currency risk
is performed through close monitoring of foreign currency movement with limited hedging through forward
contracts when necessary and prudent cash flow planning by the Management. In order to reduce the
impact of foreign currency on the cost of paper packaging and paper-based stationery products produced,
the Group reduced its dependency on import of paper rolls from overseas by substituting the consumption
requirements through local sources.

Volatile Key Raw Material Price

As the Group is engaged mainly in the manufacturing of corrugating boards, carton boxes as well as
paper-based stationery products, the main raw materials used were the paper rolls (industrial papers and
wood free papers), which accounted for more than 60% of the total cost of productions.

The Group is exposed to the risk of volatility in key raw material prices such as paper rolls as well as its
supply consistency. Price of paper rolls is subjected to price fluctuation based on the commodity price of
wood pulp. Therefore, the price fluctuation may significantly affect the cost of corrugated boards, carton
boxes and paper-based stationery products produced. It is especially critical presently in consequent of
the global shortage of paper. Hence, the demand for paper that began outstripping its supply had driven
the fluctuation and increment in paper roll prices significantly, along with other factors such as the global
shortage of shipping containers, congested seaports, capacity constraints on vessel and lockdown in
certain markets that caused the shipping costs to skyrocket, resulted in the increase in selling price to
customers.
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In order to reduce the impact of cost increases without impairing the profit margin and quality of products
produced from time to time, the Group has taken initiatives to strictly monitor the costs of raw materials,
increase the production efficiency with production optimisation and reduce wastage. Close communication
is maintained with suppliers in order to ensure swift and efficient response to such volatility. Apart from
that, continuous and reasonable cost pass-through through revised selling price is practiced by the Sales
and Marketing Department of respective subsidiaries in order to remain sustainable.

(iv) Competitive Risk

The bigger and established paper and packaging players shall predominate the weaker or smaller
suppliers with the ability to maintain their position steadily in this rapidly changing marketplace and their
controls on the upstream of the supply chain. Meanwhile, the small-scale paper and packaging players will
have difficulty to increase profit margin in the paper and packaging market due to insufficient capital in
sourcing for better technologies as well as weaker bargaining power in procuring raw materials especially
in encountering the scarcity of supply of paper rolls at this juncture, as well as to cope with the significant
upsurge of paper rolls prices, which are then lead to higher production cost to be incurred and hence
higher selling price offered to customers in order to sustain further. The small players with little to no profit
margin will then be consolidated through mergers and acquisitions by the bigger players in expanding their
market shares.

Therefore, it is important for the Group to be competitive enough in securing and maintaining its position
in the challenging market. The Group has a diverse customer base in different industrial groups with
different product mix structure to counteract the intense competition in local scene. Furthermore, by
engaging and maintaining a competent workforce with proper trainings provided, the Group is able to
ensure optimal productivity with minimal wastage and excellent quality’s products and services. With the
investments in the automation machines and plant expansion, machines capacity could be maximized and
expanded which lead to cost efficiency and economy of scale in offering a more competitive pricing
structure to customers.

(v)  cCreditrisk

The credit risk of customers increased in response to the weak market sentiment amidst the
unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic and such risk is expected to heighten given the enormous
uncertainties on the recovery of the global and local economy conditions. While the Group had adopted a
feasible sales and marketing approach balanced with prudent credit management and sustainable sales
growth and had put in place comprehensive credit management policy and processes in that respect, the
Management enhanced the credit management by employing proactive credit monitoring, tightening credit
as well as negotiation of temporary measures for payment delay, if necessary, particularly during this
difficult period.

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic caused business operations of most of the companies to be halted fully

or partially during the full and conditional lockdowns imposed by the Malaysian government, most of the
Group’s trade debtors have generally made their payments within the approved credit periods.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Ever since the outbreak of the COVID-19 in the early of year 2020, there is no apparent indications hinting when
the pandemic will come to an end whilst the emergence of new variants of virus resulted a huge spike in
the COVID-19 new cases worldwide which casts greater doubt on the epilogue of the pandemic. Amid the
vaccinated population around the globe, including Malaysia, has proliferated, global COVID-19 cases are still
increasing rapidly as the new Omicron COVID-19 variant spreads. Hence, some countries have reimposed
mobility restrictions. Coupled with the unresolved trade war between United States and China, geopolitical
tension between Russia and Ukraine as well as the elevated financial vulnerabilities in large swaths of the world,
these are expected to bring adverse impacts upon the global economy and slow down economy recovery.

Generally, risks to the global baseline are very much leaned towards the downside. Ascending inflation, debt
and income inequality could possibly obstruct the recovery of emerging and developing economies. With
comparison to advanced economies, emerging markets and developing economies are suffering from weaker
and sluggish recovery due to slower vaccination rate, lacking policy support, and more drastic scarring effects
from the pandemic. Additionally, the occurrences of inclining energy prices and supply chain disruptions globally
are the dominant forces precipitating the surge of the global inflation rate. Apart from the ongoing pandemic, the
breakout of war in Ukraine has further restrained the global economy recovery from the pandemic seeing that
the war has caused soaring food and fuel prices along with economic sanctions imposed by numerous countries
against Russia. Hence, disruptions to the global supply chain are expected to accelerate the increment in
inflation rate and decelerate the global economy development.

In accordance with the report issued by International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) in January 2022, the global growth
for year 2022 is forecasted to be shrank to 4.4 percent from 5.9 percent in 2021, and further declining to 3.8
percent for year 2023, largely reflecting forecast markdowns in the two largest economies, namely the United
States and China’. Elevated inflation is expected to persist for longer period primarily due to the ongoing supply
chain disruptions and rising energy prices in 2022. Notwithstanding that, inflation is expected to decrease
gradually once monetary policy is implemented in major economies as a counteractive measure against rising
inflation rate and the imbalances between supply and demand wane in 2022.

Rising inflation and sluggish growth will be felt by the entire global economy in consonance with the Russia’s
invasion of Ukraine as Russia and Ukraine are the major commodities producers, especially for oil and natural
gas. The consequences of such humanitarian crisis will flow through three main channels. Firstly, surging
prices for commodities such as food and energy will further accelerate the inflation rise, deteriorate the value
of incomes and weighing on demand. Secondly, neighbouring economies in particular will be struggling to
cope with the disrupted trade, supply chains as well as an extraordinary surge in refugee flows. Thirdly, higher
investor uncertainty and lower business confidence will weigh on asset prices, contracting financial conditions
and conceivably inducing the occurrence of capital outflows from the emerging markets?.

! https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2022/01/25/world-economic-outlook-update-january-2022
2 https://blogs.imf.org/2022/03/15/how-war-in-ukraine-is-reverberating-across-worlds-regions/
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The recovery of each country is highly dependent on the extent to which the virus has been contained,
vaccination rate among its citizens and the hospitalisation rate. Low and middle-income countries have slower
recovery pace as compared to wealthier countries resulted from lower vaccination rates and more restricted
fiscal space among the developing countries. Each new outbreak or new mutation of the virus can be seen as
a blockade hampering the recovery of the global economy. The health crisis had brought a significant impact on
not only the economic life but the labour market too with increase of unemployment rate as well as permanent
loss of job and income. As the pandemic persists, the global labour markets struggle to recover. Based on the
studies conducted by the International Labour Organisation (“ILO”), it is projected that total hours worked global-
ly in year 2022 will persist at approximately 2 per cent under their pre-pandemic level taking into
consideration the population growth, corresponding to a deficit of 52 million full-time equivalent jobs. The global
unemployment is forecasted to stand at 207 million in 2022, surpassing its 2019 level by some 21 million3.

Regardless of the worsening geopolitical issues and increasing COVID-19 cases globally, the nation’s domestic
demand recovery is envisioned to remain in year 2022 by the Malaysia government, supported by the
implementation of supporting policies and assistances targeted at vulnerable households, revamped consumer
sentiments, rising private consumption, and slow improvement in labour market conditions resulted from
containment measures being uplifted. Furthermore, rapid growth in the vaccinated population in Malaysia is
expected to facilitate the removal of pent-up demand, specifically affecting the domestic tourism industry which
is the critical supportive element of the economy recovery in Malaysia. In general, the expansion in global and
domestic economic activities underpinned by higher vaccination rate, along with anticipated improvement
among goods trade, are crucial to the Malaysia’s growth trajectory in 2022, although slower recovery is expect-
ed for trade relating to services.

The Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”), which is the central bank of Malaysia, foresees the nation’s economy to
rebound in 2022* with the economy growth ranging between 5.3% to 6.3% in 2022. The projection made by
BNM is slightly lower compared to the Malaysia government’s forecasted growth between 5.5% to 6.5% in the
nation’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) for 2022°. Meanwhile, the Organization for Economic Cooperation
and Development (“OECD”) forecasts Malaysia to register a GDP growth of 6% for 2022 and 5.5% for 20238.
The central bank believes that the recovery for Malaysian economy is expected to expedite in year 2022. The
propelling recovery is strengthened by various aspects inclusive of the growing external demand, introduction of
more lenient countermeasures against the pandemic, reopening of borders and positive developments in Malay-
sia’s labour market conditions. Nevertheless, the unfavourable risks to the country’s economic prospects should
not be neglected as the emergence of new variants, greater volatility in the financial markets, ongoing disruption
in the global supply chain, gradual labour market recovery and geopolitical issues could disrupt the nation’s
economy recovery progress.

3 https://www.ilo.org/wcmsp5/groups/public/---dgreports/---dcomm/---publ/documents/publication/wcms_834081.pdf

4 https://www.theedgemarkets.com/article/bnm-sees-2022-gdp-growth-53-63-shade-below-official-
projection#:~:text=KUALA%20LUMPUR%20(March%2030)%3A,(GDP)%_20for%20the %20year.

5 https://www.theedgemarkets.com/article/bnm-sees-2022-gdp-growth-53-63-shade-below-official-
projection#:~:text=KUALA%20LUMPUR%20(March%2030)%3A,(GDP)%20for%20the % 20year.

8 https://www.theedgemarkets.com/article/oecd-forecasts-malaysia-economy-grow-6-
2022#:~:text=%E2%80%9CIn%20full%2Dyear%20terms%2C,emergence %200f%20the % 200micron%20variant.
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Additionally, the upliftment of containment measures backed by the increasing vaccination rate allow most of the
economic activities resume to the pre-pandemic level contributing to the gradual improvement of Malaysia’s
labour market conditions. In accordance with the Malaysia’s Economic Outlook 2022, the unemployment rate in
Malaysia is predicted to drop to 4 percent and the total employment is envisaged to further increase by 2.3% in
20227. In tandem with higher expectations on the global health performance and more countries’ borders being
opened gradually, including Malaysia’s, more low-skilled foreign workers and expatriates are expected to flow
into Malaysia corresponding to opening up of construction and main projects that were suspended ad interim
throughout the pandemic.

The domestic outlook for Malaysia’s services sector is particularly optimistic as this sector is forecasted to grow
by 7% in 2022 as more and more economic and social activities are permitted to operate and re-opening of
Malaysia’s national borders in transitioning to the endemic phase of COVID-192. In terms of the wholesale and
retail trade sub-sector, it is predicted to expand by 8.7% in 2022, due to the swift participation in e-commerce
and adaptation to digitalisation, specifically in the retail segment. Aside from the services sector, the
manufacturing sector is also expected to grow by 4.7% in the year 2022, mainly contributed by the performance
of both the export and domestic-oriented industries. Through positioning Malaysia as one of the key players in
the global semiconductor trade, the manufacturing sector is anticipated to gain more momentum in its growth
along with the rising demand for E&E products globally.

Moreover, the Malaysia Economic Outlook 2022 envisioned that the domestic demand and private consumption
is to further inflate. The Malaysia government has placed high expectation on acquiring growth from most
expenditure items, and public expenditure is expected to rebound strongly due to the hastening of large
infrastructure projects. Improved employment prospects, higher disposable income, along with broad-based
economic recovery are expected to support such increment in the private consumption. Elevating consumer
confidence and promising wealth effect on the back of modest recovery of the stock market are also envisioned
to encourage higher private consumption spending. Besides, the domestic demand is also expected to be driven
up through the implementation of the Twelfth (12th) Malaysia Plan along with the expected expansion in private
investment activities. The Malaysia’s Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) inflation rate for 2022 is forecasted at 2.1%,
following better economic prospects and steady crude oil prices®.

All in all, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic along with the intensifying geopolitical issues has induced
considerable human suffering as well as major economic and supply chain disruptions. It has significantly
impacted all industries and businesses including the paper packaging industry in terms of local and export sales,
inventory and supply of paper board, logistic interruption, workforce and capacity utilisation, production volume,
capital investment as well as the various fixed and variable costs to be incurred. The paper packaging and
paper-based stationery industries hinge heavily on the performance of economic and relevant industries the
Group is supplying to, not only in Malaysia but also regionally. On the other hand, the main raw materials — paper
rolls are still relying heavily on the availability of paper supply worldwide along with the volatility price of paper
rolls in the global market.

7 https://www.malaymail.com/news/malaysia/2021/10/29/economic-outlook-2022-report-unemployment-rate-
expected-to-fall-to-4pc-next/2016958

8 https://budget.mof.gov.my/pdf/2022/economy/economy-2022.pdf
9 https://budget.mof.gov.my/pdf/2022/economy/Key-Data-Forecast.pdf
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With the imminent global recession to be unfolded in foreseeable future, the Group is expected to be affected
by such developments, similar to majority of the businesses worldwide. Therefore, it is paramount for the Group
to act prudently in the conduct of the businesses of the Group by preserving the sales, practicing prudent capital
management and pursuing cost cutting measures while maintaining adequate and skilled workforce in order to
ride through such challenging time. However, it poses challenges to the Group quantifying the exact financial
impacts and the severity of such impacts that could affect the Group at this juncture in view of the uncertainties,
instabilities and geopolitical issues, same hold true regarding the economic impacts of triple headwinds.
Therefore, additional risk mitigation measures will be taken by the Management in the future to ride through this
headwind shall the conditions worsen in future.

Beyond its cyclical impact on growth, the pandemic has fundamentally reshaped the economy and the way we
conduct our businesses and daily affairs. Substantial volume of businesses has made the transition to widen
their reach to the customers and greater community through the virtual realm utilising existing online e-com-
merce platform. In the medium term, it is also important for the Group to continue its strategy of not overly
dependent on one industry group and continue to diversify its customer and industry bases in coming years as
the business landscape and delivery mode (for example, opportunity present in the e-commerce scene) are
expected to shift post COVID-19 pandemic and imminent recession. In order to sustain in the aftermath of
COVID-19 pandemic and imminent recession, it is important for the Group to position itself as the green partner
(as the voice of environment conservation growing by days), rather than just pure packaging material supplier,
to provide value-added services to its customers.

Along with the blooming of environmental and sustainability concerns globally, consumers’ and regulatory
bodies’ awareness on these issues and its potential impacts has seem to escalate throughout recent decades.
Regulatory bodies are now imposing and devising restrictions to reduce non-biodegradable wastage and
consumers are actively reducing their reliance on plastic packaging by seeking for other alternatives to battle
against the environmental and sustainability issues. In pursuance of minimising disposable plastic waste within
Malaysia, which could pose a long-lasting threat to the livelihood of its people if it is left unattended, the Malaysia
government has implemented an initiative to prohibit the usage of disposable single-use plastic by year 2030.
Such prohibition initiative may lead to potential positive prospects of paper packaging which has been seen as
the most environment friendly packaging solution. Paper packaging materials can be easily reused and recycled
as compared to other materials, such as metals and plastics. Therefore, paper packaging is amongst the most
eco-friendly and economic forms of packaging. Demand for paper packaging materials is expected to be driven
up in the forthcoming years in view of its potential to be the perfect substitute for plastic packaging materials.

0 https://www.malaymail.com/news/malaysia/2020/11/19/all-state-govts-back-implementation-of-no-plastic-bag-
campaign-says-environ/1924319
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Being one of the leading paper packaging companies, we highly anticipate growth in the demand for paper
packaging products, which is popularly used in the consumer products packaging as well as e-commerce
product packaging following the rapid growth and convenience of online shopping and delivery-on-demand
services in addition to the heightened consumers’ awareness on environmental issues. The pandemic outbreak
has also changed the shopping behaviour of consumers due to the preventive measures of social distancing
and lockdown imposed. More consumers have shifted from making their purchases in brick-and-mortar stores
to online e-commerce platforms. People would perceive that online shopping provides a safer environment and
creates more conveniences rather than doing in-store purchasing. In line with the booming of e-commerce
business in the recent years as well as the aspiration among a strengthening middle class to engage with
global brands and shopping habits, it has facilitated the usage of alternative packaging options such as green
packaging and corrugated packaging with the aim to preserve our environment through minimising the usage of
plastics. Therefore, packaging producers must concentrate on tapping the potential growth in the emerging
markets as well as in the developed economies.

In response to the above projected developments in the economic and market conditions, the Group is acting
proactively and prudently to preserve its position as one of the market leaders in the corrugated boards and
carton boxes manufacturing industry in Malaysia and is expecting to maintain reasonable performance as
compared to comparable industry peers in Malaysia during the year as well as in years to come, with counter
measures implemented in response to the triple headwinds. Nevertheless, the Board of Directors do maintain a
cautious outlook for the Group’s performance in the coming financial year 2022 as the business environment
continue to be incredibly challenging following the health crisis, worsening geopolitical crisis, political instability
and other uncertainties. The Group will continue its effort to align its business strategies, improve operational
efficiency and product quality in navigating through the challenging and intense competition market
environment.

DIVIDEND

A final single tier dividend of 3.25 sen per ordinary share (net of treasury shares) was distributed to the
shareholders on 15 September 2020 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020, amounting to
approximately RM 2.410 million. Besides, a final single tier dividend of 2 sen per ordinary share (net of treasury
share) in respect of the current financial year ended 31 December 2021 has been declared for payment on 20
May 2022 to shareholders registered in the Register of Members on 5 May 2022, amounting to approximately
RM 1.483 million.

The Group adopts prudent and conservative approach toward its capital expenditure and working capital
requirements, especially during the current challenging business environment. As such, capital expenditure and
working capital financing requirements are sourced, firstly, by internally generated funds, supplemented by
suitable debt and equity financings. As such, at present, the Group does not adopt a fixed dividend policy but to
consider distribute excess profits generated after taking into consideration of the cash reserve requirements for
black swan event, planned capital expenditures and working capital requirements in current and coming years.
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The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Ornapaper Berhad (“Ornapaper” or “the Company”) recognises and
subscribes to the importance of the principles and practices (including intended outcomes) set out in the updat-
ed Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) issued by Securities Commission which took effect
from 28 April 2021. The Board is firmly committed that accountability and transparency at every level of the
organisation is essential in safeguarding assets, enhancing shareholders’ value and maintaining strong financial
performance.

The Board is pleased to provide the following overview statement, which sets out the manner in which the
Company has applied the 3 principles set out in the MCCG and the extent of compliance with principles of the
MCCG advocated therein in accordance with Paragraph 15.25 and Practice Note 9 of the Main Market Listing
Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) that has been in place
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2021, unless specified otherwise.

The application of each practice set out in the MCCG during the financial year are disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Report”) prescribed by Bursa Securities and submitted together with this Annual
Report in accordance with Paragraph 15.25 and Practice Note 9 of the MMLR. The CG Reports for the financial
year under review is available for download from the Company’s website at www.ornapaper.com as well via an
announcement on the website of Bursa Securities.

The CG Overview Statement should be read in tandem with the CG Report to provide comprehensive
disclosures of the application of each Principle and Practice to achieve the intended outcome set out in
the MCCG.

Principle A — Board Leadership and Effectiveness

¢ Board Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall corporate governance of the Group, including its strategic plan,
overall management and business performance, management of principal risk and controls, standard of
conduct, sustainability management and critical business issues, decisions and leading the Group towards
achieving its Vision and Mission. The Board comprises Directors who are entrepreneurs and experienced
professionals in the fields of business management, legal, accountancy and taxation which is guided by
the Board’s approved Board Charter. The roles and responsibilities of the Board are set out in the Board
Charter, which is published on the Company’s website at www.ornapaper.com.

In a nutshell, the Board is assuming the following, amongst other roles and responsibilities:-

» Set the key values, corporate objectives, and ethos of the Group (including its subsidiaries);

* Review and approve strategic plans for the Group (including its subsidiaries) and ensure that such
strategic plans are consistent with corporate objectives and supports long-term value creation and
includes strategies on economic, environmental and social consideration underpinning sustainability;

* Oversee the conduct of the Group’s (including its subsidiaries) business and evaluate whether the
business is being properly managed;
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* Review, challenge and decide on the Group’s overall corporate strategy, budgets, plans and policies
proposed by the Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and Key Senior Management of the
Group, and monitor on the implementation of such proposals;

» Together with the Directors of its subsidiaries and Key Senior Management of the Group, promote good
corporate governance culture and practices within the Group which reinforces ethical, prudent and
professional behaviour;

+ Identify principal risks of the Group (including its subsidiaries) and ensuring the implementation of
appropriate internal controls and mitigation measures by the Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries and Key Senior Management of the Group;

» Set the risk appetite within which the Board of the Company expects Management to operate and to
ensure there is a sound risk management framework to identify, analyse, evaluate, manage and monitor
significant financial and non-financial risks;

» Ensure adequate trainings are provided to the Board’s members of the Company and its subsidiaries and
Key Senior Management of the Group;

» Ensure all Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries are able to understand financial statements and
form a view on the information presented;

» Review the policy and procedures for appointment and re-appointment of Director of the Company and
its subsidiaries and appointment of member of Key Senior Management of the Group that such Director
or member of Key Senior Management possess the required character, experience, integrity,
competence and time to:

o effectively and diligently discharge their responsibilities and duties and contribute to the proper
governance of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
o manage the Group’s business activities and affairs in the best interests of its stakeholders;

* Ensure that succession planning of the future Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and Key
Senior Management of the Group are in place;

* Ensure formal and transparent remuneration policy and procedure is established to attract and retain
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and Key Senior Management of the Group and the
remunerations of the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and Key Senior Management of the
Group are measured against their contributions, performance (including performance in relation
sustainability management) and long term sustainability of the Group;

» Oversee the development and implementation of Corporate Disclosure Policy for the Group (including its
subsidiaries) to enable effective communication with stakeholders and in compliance with relevant laws
and regulations;

* Oversee the implementation of internal and external stakeholder engagement by the Company and its
subsidiaries to ensure inputs are obtained from the stakeholders on the economic, environment and
social matters and potential risks in relation to the businesses of the Group and the interests of the all
affected stakeholders are taken care of;
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* Review the adequacy and integrity of the internal controls system and management information system
(including information and communication system and systems for ensuring compliance with applicable
laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines) of the Company and its subsidiaries, and that integrity
of the Group’s financial and non-financial reporting (including subsidiaries) is preserved for decision
making and external compliance purposes;

» Ensure the integrity of the Group’s financial and non-financial reporting (including subsidiaries) is
preserved for decision making and external compliance purposes;

» Oversee the development and implementation of Sustainability Policy for the Group (including its
subsidiaries) to manage economic, environment and social matters in relation to the businesses of the
Group and to ensure that the strategic plan of the Company and its subsidiaries supports long term
sustainability (including evaluate economic, environmental and social matters of the Company and its
subsidiaries regularly and take appropriate action to ensure the directors and Senior Management stay
abreast with and understand the sustainability issues relevant to the Company and its subsidiaries and
its business, including climate-related risks and opportunities);

* Regelar review the division of responsibilities among the Board, Board Committees, Chairman, Chief
Executive Director (“CED”) and authorities delegated to Management through CED;

» Ensure the Code of Conduct of the Company and its subsidiaries promote the core values of the Group
established by the Board and ensure the implementation of appropriate internal control system to
support, promote and ensure its compliance;

» Oversee the development and implementation of Whistleblowing Policy for the Group (including its
subsidiaries) to enable genuine concerns are objectively investigated and addressed with corrective
actions; and

* Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s Anti-Bribery and Corruption Management
(“ABCM”) system including promoting appropriate anti-bribery and corruption culture within the Group.

The roles and responsibilities of the Board and the application of the MCCG’s practice are disclosed in
Practice 1.1 of the CG Report.

Aside from the responsibilities listed above, significant matters requiring deliberation and approval from
the Board is clearly defined by the Board in the Board Charter as matters reserved for the Board for
consideration and approval.

The Board is led by the Executive Chairman, a senior board member who was not involved in the day-to-day
operations (except acting as authorised signatory for the bank accounts of the Group) and was able to
command respect from the fellow Board members to ensure effectiveness of the Board. The Executive
Chairman had resigned from his position on 22 December 2021 due to personal reason. A summary of the
responsibilities of the Chairman is disclosed in Practice 1.2 of the CG Report.

On the other hand, the business operations of the Group were overseen by CED whose responsibilities are
disclosed in Practice 1.3 of the CG Report.
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To ensure that there is a balance of power and authority within the Board, the position of the Executive
Chairman and the CED is separated and there is a clear division of responsibility between the Executive
Chairman and the CED. The Executive Chairman is responsible for the governance, orderly conduct and
effectiveness of the Board while the CED is responsible for managing the Group’s business operations and
implementation of policies and strategies approved by the Board. A summary of the separation of the roles

of Executive Chairman and CED is disclosed in Practice 1.3 of CG Report.

In compliance with MCCG, the Executive Chairman was not a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Board Risk Management Committee during the financial year
under review to enhance the independence and oversight roles of the Chairman of the Board in leading the

Board of the Company. Kindly refer to Practice 1.4 of CG Report for further details.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors play an important role in ensuring that the strategies proposed
by the Management are fully deliberated and examined, to ensure that the interest of all stakeholders are

given due considerations during the decision-making process.

The Board members, in carrying out their duties and responsibilities, are firmly committed to ensuring that
the highest standards of corporate governance and corporate conduct are adhered to, in order for the
Company to achieve strong financial performance for each financial year, and more importantly to deliver

long-term and sustainable value to stakeholders.

To ensure the effective discharge of its functions and responsibilities, the Board delegates a reasonable
level of the Board’s authorities and discretion to the Executive Directors, representing the Management, as

well as to formally constituted Board Committees.

The Board Committees (Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Board
Risk Management Committee) are entrusted with specific responsibilities to oversee the Company’s affairs,
in accordance with their respective Terms of References or policy approved by the Board. At each relevant
Board meeting, minutes of the Board Committee meetings are presented to the Board. The respective
Chairman / Chairperson of the Board Committees will also report to the Board on key issues deliberated by

the Board Committees.

In turn, the Board and Executive Directors provide guidance and oversight to the Management Committee
(“MC”) that comprises heads of department, who is responsible for day-to-day operational efficiency and
effectiveness, compliance with relevant laws and regulations and in accordance with the procedures
and authorities granted in the Group’s operating procedures & Limit of Authority Matrix approved by the
Executive Directors. The authorisation procedures for key processes are stated in the Group’s policies and

procedures.
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The Board is assisted by professional Chartered Secretaries in discharging duties efficiently and effectively.

The details of the Company Secretaries are disclosed in Practice 1.5 of CG Report.

e Board Charter

In carrying out its duties, the Board is guided by a formal Board Charter approved by the Board. The Board

Charter sets out the Board Structure (which includes Board Composition, appointment and re-election
process, time commitments, tenure and independence of Independent Director), qualification, vacation
of office and removal of Directors, roles and responsibilities (Board, Board Committees, Chairman,
CED, Company Secretaries and matters reserved for the Board), and Board activities and processes

(Board meetings, Directors’ training, Directors’ remuneration, Board and member assessment, access to
independent professional advice, supply of information), stakeholder’s engagement, conflict of interest,

code of ethics and conduct of Directors and group governance’s responsibility.

Further disclosures on the details of Board Charter are disclosed in Practice 2.1 of the CG Report.

The Board Charter is available for reference at “Corporate Info” section of the Company’s website www.or-

napaper.com. The Board Charter was last reviewed and updated on 30 December 2021.

* Code of Conduct and Whistle Blowing Policy

In ensuring the business sustainability, the Board is fully committed to the highest standard of integrity,

transparency and accountability in the conduct of the Group’s business and operations. The Code of
Conduct was updated and approved by the Board on 30 December 2021 to govern the standards of ethics

and good conduct expected for the Directors, Management and employees of the Group.

Additionally, the Group has in placed a formalised policy on The Prevention and Eradication of Sexual
Harassment at Workplace with complaint procedures stated in the policy. This is to ensure that the Group
is able to provide a working environment which is conducive, safe and free from sexual harassment.
Furthermore, the employees are made aware of proper conduct through the list of “Misconduct in The

Company” listed in the Employment Policy.

To further enhance the ethical value throughout the Group, formal Anti-Bribery and Corruption Framework
had been put in place by the Board to effectively manage and mitigate risk of bribery and conflict of interest

situation. Further disclosure pertaining to the Group’s Code of Conduct is disclosed in Practice 3.1 of the

CG Report.

To foster an environment where integrity and ethical behavior are maintained and any illegal or improper

action and/or wrong doing in the Group, the Board established a Whistleblowing Policy to enable the
employees and other interested party to confidentially reports any concerns related to matters covered by
the Group’s Code of Conduct, Anti-Bribery and Corruption Framework, legal issues and accounting or audit
matters. Further disclosure pertaining to the Whistleblowing Policy is disclosed in Practice 3.2 of the CG

Report.
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The Code of Conduct, Anti-Bribery and Corruption Framework and Whistleblowing Policy are available for
download from “Corporate Governance” section of the “Investor Relations” tab of the Company’s website at

www.ornapaper.com.

* Board Meetings

To carry out its function and responsibilities, the Board meets quarterly to review its quarterly performances
and discuss new strategies. Additional meeting will be called when necessary. During the financial year
ended 31 December 2021, five (5) meetings have been held and attendance of each of the Directors is as

follows: -
Names of Directors Number of Meetings Attended
Ang Kwee Teng 5/5
Sai Chin Hock 4/5
Sai Han Siong 5/5
Tan Chin Hwee 5/5
Siow Kee Yen 5/5
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin 5/5
Sai Ah Sai 5/5

The Chairman of the Board, on the advice of the Company Secretary, determined the agenda of the
meetings of the Board during the financial year under review and ensure that sufficient time was allocated
during the meeting proceedings so that each agenda items or issues brought up were discussed or

deliberated in necessary depth before decisions were made.

Audit Committee meetings of the Company were not combined with the Board Meetings during the financial
year under review and other directors and employees attended any particular Audit Committee meeting only
at the Audit Committee’s invitation in order for the Audit Committee to discharge its delegated oversight

duties by the Board and such invitations were specific to relevant agenda item of the meeting.

All meetings of the Board are duly recorded in the Board minutes by the Company Secretaries who attended
all the Board meetings of the Company. The Company Secretaries ensure that all Board meetings are
properly convened, and proper records of the deliberations, proceedings and resolutions passed are
recorded and maintained. In the interval between Board meetings, for exceptional matters requiring urgent
Board’s decision, Board’s approval is sought via circular resolutions, which are attached with sufficient and

relevant information required for an informed decision to be made.
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e  Supply of Information

The Board members in their individual capacity have unrestricted access to complete information on a
timely basis in the form and quality necessary for the discharge of their duties and responsibilities. All the
Directors are notified of the Board meetings within stipulated time prior to the meetings date. Notice of each
meeting and the agenda are circulated to all the Directors no later than five (5) working days before
the scheduled Board Meetings. This is to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to obtain a
comprehensive understanding of the issues to be deliberated upon at the meeting in order to arrive at an

informed decision as well as to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

All the Directors have direct access to the Senior Management. During the Board meetings, Senior
Management are invited to present and discuss on the quarterly financial report / non-financial information

and market / industry development.

In addition, the Directors may seek independent professional advice at their own discretion made available
at the Company’s expense on specific issues to render their independent and professional views and advice

to the Board.

The Directors also have access to the services of the Company Secretaries for advice who is responsible

for ensuring that the Board’s procedures are followed.

Please refer to Practice 1.6 of the CG Report for details of the Board’s proceedings on meeting materials

and supply of information.

¢ Composition of the Board

The Group is headed by an effective Board with right mixture of knowledge, expertise and diverse academic
background to effectively discharge its stewardship responsibilities in spearheading the Group’s growth and

future direction.

The appointment and re-appointment of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries are governed
by Policy and Procedure on Nomination and Appointment of Director and Senior Management
and Re-Appointment of Director and Fit and Proper Policy approved by the Board. It is the duty of the
Nomination Committee to ensure that the composition of the Board is refreshed periodically based on the
results of the Board evaluation and performance and the tenure of each Director. The tenure of the Directors
of the Company was evaluated by the Nomination Committee in April 2022 and the recommendations
for the re-appointment of Directors for the forthcoming Annual General Meeting were made after the
Nomination Committee and the Board were satisfied that the current board composition and the tenure of
each director were able to fulfil the current and future needs of the Group and that performance
and contribution of directors seek for re-appointment were satisfactorily to the proper governance and
oversight responsibilities of the Board. Please refer to Practice 5.1 of the CG report for the detailed
disclosure on review of Board composition and tenure of individual Directors and that re-appointment is

based on satisfactory evaluation of the Director’s performance and contribution to the Board.

The Board currently comprises of six (6) members of which two (2) are Executive Directors, one (1)
Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director and three (3) are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
profiles of the Directors are set out in the Profile section of this Annual Report. With the present composition
of the Board, the Company complies with Practice 5.2 of MCCG which requires that at least half of the

Directors of the Board should be Independent Directors.

34 | Annual Report 2021



Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Corporate Governance Overview Statement

* Board Diversity

The Board recognises the importance of diversity in the boardroom and senior level management. The
boardroom diversity (including gender diversity) is part of the criteria in proposing of the appointment of new
director. The appointment of new Director and member of Key Senior Management or the re-appointment
of Directors are governed by Policy and Procedure on Nomination and Appointment of Director and Senior
Management and Re-Appointment of Director and the criteria for such appointment and re-appointment are
fit and proper (governed by Fit and Proper Policy with requirement on probity, personal integrity, reputation,
financial integrity, experience and competency, time and commitment (including directorship in public and
private limited companies)), skilled and diverse backgrounds, requirements on Boardroom and Senior
Management diversity, knowledge and skill on sustainability oversight and management and independence

for independent director.

It is the policy of the Board that active politician shall not be appointed as a member of the Board of the
Company and its subsidiaries. At present, active politician was not appointed as a member of the Board of
the Company and its subsidiaries. Please refer to Practice 5.5 of the CG Report on procedure and criteria
for appointment of Director and member of Senior Management and re-appointment of Director and
Practice 5.10 of the CG Report on the disclosure on the policy on board diversity per Policy and Procedure

on Nomination and Appointment of Director and Senior Management and Re-Appointment of Director.

Based on the Board Charter, the Board had set its sight to meet the requirement to have at least one (1)
female representation on the Board of the Company. Presently, there is one (1) female Director on the
Board of the Company, and the Company aims to continue in promoting the representation of women in the

composition of the Board and senior level of management.

* Appointment of Directors and Key Senior Management and Re-Appointment of Directors

Appointment of new Director to the Board and member of Key Senior Management are recommended by
the Nomination Committee to the Board for consideration and approval. The processes and criteria (includ-
ing conflict of interest check) for the nomination and appointment of Director and Key Senior Management
are specified in the Policy and Procedure on Nomination and Appointment of Director and Senior Manage-
ment and Re-Appointment of Director and Fit and Proper Policy. It is the policy established by the Board that

recommendations  from independent sources shall be sought (in addition to

recommendations from existing Directors and major shareholders) in relation to candidates for new

directorship.

In accordance with the MMLR and the Company’s Constitution, at least one-third (1/3) of the Directors
or the number nearest to one-third (1/3), shall retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting and at
least once every three (3) years. The Directors retiring from office shall be eligible for re-election by the

shareholders.

All Board members who are newly appointed are subject to retirement at the subsequent annual general
meeting of the Company. All Directors (including the Chief Executive Director) will retire at regular intervals
by rotation at least once every three (3) years and shall be eligible for re-election. The process and criteria
for re-appointment of director is included in Policy and Procedure on Nomination and Appointment of

Director and Key Senior Management and Re-Appointment of Director and Fit and Proper Policy.
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The recommendations of re-appointment of retiring directors during forthcoming Twentieth Annual General
Meeting (20th AGM) was only made by the Nomination Committee to the Board and the Board for the
shareholders of the Company upon satisfactory results of fit and proper and conflict of interest check,
independence assessment (for Independent Directors) and performance evaluation of such Directors by the
Nomination Committee. To facilitate the informed decision by the shareholders on the re-appointment of
retiring directors during forthcoming 20th AGM, disclosures were made in the notes to the agendas of the
general meeting in relation to interest, position or relationship of such Directors individually that might
influence the independent judgement to be brought to the Board and might influence such Director to act
in the best interests of the Group and that such recommendations of re-appointment are based on
the satisfactory results of fit and proper and conflict of interest check, independence assessment (for
Independent Directors) and performance evaluation of such directors performed.

Please refer to Practice 5.6 and 5.7 of CG Report for the details on the nomination and elect, appointment
and re-appointment process of the Director and member of Key Senior Managements.

* Performance Assessment and Evaluation of the Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors

The Nomination Committee reviews the required mix of skills, competencies, experience and other qualities
on an annual basis, including core competencies of individual Director which the Directors should bring to
the Board. The Nomination Committee undertakes an annual assessment of the Independent Directors’
independence and consider if they can continue to bring independent and objective judgment to Board
deliberations. The Board had implemented a process carried out by the Nomination Committee annually for
the assessment and feedback to the Board the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution
of each individual Directors for discussion and acceptance and for further improvement.

On annual basis, the Company Secretary circulates to each Director the relevant assessment and review
forms/questionnaires in relation to the Board and Board Committee assessments/evaluations with sufficient
time for all the Directors to complete in advance of the meeting of the Nomination Committee and the Board
in order for the Company Secretary to collate the assessments/evaluations results for the Nomination
Committee to review and report to the Board.

During the financial year under review, the Board, through Nomination Committee, conducted the Board
and Board Committee Evaluation, Directors’ Self-Evaluation for individual Directors and the assessment
on the effectiveness of Audit Committee and its composition through Audit Committee Members’ Peer
Performance Evaluation and Audit Committee Evaluation.

Based on the Board and Board Committee, Audit Committee, Audit Committee Members’ Peer Performance
Evaluation and Directors’ Self-Evaluation for individual Directors conducted for the financial year 31
December 2021, the Nomination Committee and the Board were satisfied with the composition and
competency of the present Board, the Board Committees and individual Directors. In particular, based on
the above assessments performed on the Audit Committee and its members, the Board is of the opinion that
the Audit Committee and its members had effectively discharged their duties in accordance with its terms of
reference. The summary result of the assessment was presented by the Nomination Committee to the
Board for review, acceptance and deliberation.
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Please refer to Practice 6.1 of the CG Report for the details on the performance evaluation of the Board, the

Board Committees and self-assessment for individual Directors.

* Independence of Independent Director

In order for the Independent Directors to present the independent and objective judgement to the Board’s
for deliberation, and to ensure that conflict of interest or undue influence from interested parties is well taken
care of, the Board is committed to ensure that the independence of the Independent Directors whom will
be preserved via independent assessment by Nomination Committee prior to their appointment based
on formal nomination and selection process with the results of the review are reported to the Board for
consideration and decision. The assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors includes the use of “Annual Self-Assessment of The Independence of Independent Director

Checklist” self-assessment form with prescribed criteria.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are subject to independence assessment by the Nomination
Committee’s and to be recommended to the Board to form an opinion on the independency of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors. In addition, written independence declaration which is consistent
with the definition of Independent Director defined in Practice Note 13 and the MMLR for the individual
Independent Directors were obtained annually. Based on the independence declaration obtained
from Independent Director during the financial year under review, the Board is satisfied with the level of
independence demonstrated by all the Independent Non-Executive Directors, and their ability to bring

independent and objective judgement during board deliberations.

The tenure of an Independent Director, as stated in the Board Charter, shall not exceed a cumulative term
of nine (9) years. Upon completion of the nine (9) years, such Independent Director may continue to serve
on the Board subject to the director’s re-designation as a Non-Independent Director. If the Board continues
to retain the Independent Director after the nineth (9th) years, the Board should seek annual shareholders’

approval through a two-tiers voting process.

As at the date of this Annual Report, both Mr. Siow Kee Yen and Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors had served on the Board for a cumulative term of more than nine (9)
years. Based on the Independent Directors’ self-assessment submitted to the Nomination Committee for
review and recommendation and subsequent review and deliberation by the Board in April 2022, the Board
concluded that Mr. Siow Kee Yen and Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin, remains objective and independent
during the deliberations and decision making of the Board and Board Committees they are in. The length of
their service on the Board did not interfere with their independent judgment and they continue to act in the

best interest of the Group.

To remain as Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. Siow Kee Yen and Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin

will be subjected to two-tier voting in the forthcoming 20th AGM.

Please refer to Practice 5.3 of the CG Report for further details.
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¢ Time Commitment

In order for the Board to operate effectively and efficiently, each Board members is expected to devote
sufficient time and effort to discharge their individual responsibilities with reasonable due care, skills and
diligence. To ensure that the time commitment from each Directors and to facilitate planning, the meeting
dates for the Board and Board Committee meetings are scheduled during the Board Meeting held at the end
of the financial year, with the date and any subsequent changes to the scheduled meeting date for the

following Board or Board Committee Meetings confirmed during the Board Meeting.

The Directors are required to notify the Board before accepting any new directorship and to indicate the time

expected to be spent on the new appointment.

* Directors and Key Senior Management Remuneration

The Board assumes the overall responsibility to establish and implement effective remuneration policy that
serves to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and Key Senior Management in pursue of the medium
to long-term objectives of the Group. The Board had put in place a Remuneration Policy for Directors
and Senior Management for adoption by the Remuneration Committee and serves as a guidance when
reviewing the proposed remuneration package of the members of the Board and Key Senior Management.
Major components of the remuneration package for Executive Director, member of Key Senior Management

and Non-Executive Director are specified in the Policy.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board the remuneration packages
of the members of the Board and Key Senior Management. The Board as a whole determines the
remuneration of the Directors and Key Senior Management. Individual Director is abstained from
deliberation and approval of his/her own remuneration. Director who are shareholder and controlling
shareholder with a nominee or connected Director on the Board will be abstained from voting at general

meetings to approve the remunerations to be paid to such interested Director.

Please refer to Practice 7.1 and 7.2 of CG Report for the details of Remuneration Policy for Directors and

Senior Management and summary of details of terms of reference of Remuneration Committee.

Please refer to Practice 8.1 of CG Report for the breakdowns of remuneration of individual Directors (includ-
ing fees, salary, bonus, benefits in-kind and other emoluments) on named basis for the financial year ended

31 December 2021.

Disclosure on named basis of the Key Senior Management’s remuneration component in bands of
RM50,000 is not adopted as the Board is of the opinion that the disclosure may jeopardize the personal
security of the individual Senior Management and increase the risk of loss of key personnel if their

remuneration packages are published publicly.

Please refer to Practice 8.2 of CG Report for the explanation on the departure in relation to disclosure on

named basis of the Key Senior Management’s remuneration component in bands of RM50,000.

38  Annual Report 2021



Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Corporate Governance Overview Statement

e Board Committees

As part of its efforts to ensure the effective discharge of its duties, the Board delegates certain functions to
certain Committees, namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Board Risk Management Committee with each operating within its clearly define terms of reference. The
Chairman of the various Committees reports to the Board on the outcome of the Committee meetings.

[e]

Audit Committee

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the number of meetings held,
attendance, and activities carried out during the financial year are available in the Audit Committee
Report as set out in this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors which is in
compliance with the MMLR and chaired by Independent Non-Executive Director. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 under review, the Nomination Committee met two (2) times and the
members of the committee and attendance are as follow:

Name Position Number of Meetings Attended
Siow Kee Yen (Chairman) 2/2
Datuk Adillah Binti Ahmad Nordin (Member) 2/2
Tan Chin Hwee (Member) 2/2

The Nomination Committee is guided by written terms of reference duly approved by the Board which
states the authority, duties and responsibilities. A copy of the Terms of Reference of the Nomination
Committee is available at “Investor Relation” section of the Company’s website at www.ornapaper.com.

The Nomination Committee meetings were held to review and assess, the performance of the Board, the
Board Committees, individual Directors, independence assessment of Independent Directors and
proposed nomination of new Director and Senior Management as well as re-appointment of Director.
The results of the review and assessment were reported to the Board for review and deliberation.

During financial year ended 31 December 2021, there was no new directorship and new member of
Senior Management appointed.

Please refer to Practice 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.5, 5.6, 5.7, 5.8 and 6.1 of the CG Report for the details on the
Nomination Committee and its activities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed to assist the Board in determining, developing and
recommending an appropriate remuneration policy and remuneration package for Directors and Senior
Management so as to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and Senior Management. The
Remuneration Committee is guided by formal Terms of Reference. Further disclosure on the
Remuneration Committee (and its activities) and Remuneration Policies and Procedure are disclosed in
Practice 7.1 and 7.2 of the CG Report.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors as follow:-

Name Position
Datuk Adillah Binti Ahmad Nordin Chairperson
Siow Kee Yen Member
Tan Chin Hwee Member

The Remuneration Committee is guided by formal Terms of Reference approved by the Board which states
the composition requirement, authority roles and responsibility of the committee. The terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee is available at “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website at
www.ornapaper.com.

During the financial ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee met once and the attendance
of individual committee members is as follow:-

Name Number of Meetings Attended
Datuk Adillah Binti Ahmad Nordin 11
Siow Kee Yen 11
Tan Chin Hwee 11

The meeting was held to review on the remuneration package of Executive Directors, and Directors’ fees for
Non-Executive Directors and recommended to the Board and shareholders (if required) for approval.

Board Risk Management Committee
The Board Risk Management Committee was formed to provide oversight, direction and counsel to the
Group risk management process and to assist the Board in identifying, mitigating and monitoring critical risk

highlighted by businesses units.

The Board Risk Management Committee comprises of three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors, in
compliance with the Step-Up practice recommended by MCCG as follows:

Name Position
Tan Chin Hwee Chairperson
Siow Kee Yen Member
Datuk Adillah Binti Ahmad Nordin Member

During the financial ended 31 December 2021, the Board Risk Management Committee met twice and the
attendance of individual committee members is as follow:

Name Number of Meetings Attended
Tan Chin Hwee 2/2
Siow Kee Yen 2/2
Datuk Adillah Binti Ahmad Nordin 2/2

The Board Risk Management Committee’s Terms of Reference is published in “Corporate Governance”
section of the “Investor Relations” tab of the Company website at www.ornapaper.com.
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Further disclosure on the risk management activities during the financial year can be found in Practice 10.1
and 10.2 of the CG Report and the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of this Annual

Report.

* Directors’ Training

As per the Board Charter, the Board is assigned with the responsibility to assess the training needs of the
Directors (including the knowledge and skill sets required to perform its oversight role in relation to
sustainability management) of its individual members and recommend to the Board of the Company of the
relevant training programme to ensure the Directors of the Company have access to continuing education

programme relevant to their discharge of fiduciary duties.

All Directors have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme prescribed by Bursa Securities. The
Directors are mindful that they should continuously attend training in order to broaden their perspectives
and to equip themselves with the necessary skills to carry out their roles effectively as Directors in
discharging their responsibilities towards corporate governance, operational and regulatory issues. The
training needs of the Directors, on the type of training to be attended, are identified during the Board, Board
Committee performance evaluation and directors’ self-evaluation carried out by the Nomination Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, all members of the Board have attended training(s) that
were organised by regulatory bodies or professional organizations. The trainings attended by individual

Board member are shown in the following table:

Director Name of Conference/Talk/Seminar Organiser
Attended or Participated

Sai Chin Hock Updates on Malaysian Code of Corporate NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd
Governance 2021 (MCCG 2021)

Sai Ah Sai Updates on Malaysian Code of Corporate NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd
Governance 2021 (MCCG 2021)

Sai Han Siong Updates on Malaysian Code of Corporate NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd
Governance 2021 (MCCG 2021)

Ang Kwee Teng Updates on Malaysian Code of Corporate NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd
Governance 2021 (MCCG 2021)

Siow Kee Yen MIA Webinar Series: New Era for Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Transfer Pricing -Top 10 Questions
Answered

Learn to Develop, Build Upon and/or Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
Appreciate the Importance of the Capital
Statement in Tax Audits

Current Tax Issues on Interest Expense Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
MIA Webinar Series: Modified Auditor's Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Report

Tax Agents under Section 153(3) of the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
Income Tax Act 1967

MIA Webinar Series: Impact on Auditor Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Reporting of COVID-19 and MCO
Restrictions

Workshop on The Decision to Litigate: Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
Tax Appeals and Choice of Forum

Seminar Percukaian Kebangsaan 2021 Lembaga Dalam Hasil Negeri,
Malaysia

Updates on Malaysian Code of Corporate NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd
Governance 2021 (MCCG 2021)
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Datuk Adilah binti
Ahmad Nordin

Updates on Malaysian Code of Corporate
Governance 2021 (MCCG 2021)

NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd

Tan Chin Hwee

Practical Issues on the Beneficial | Institute of Approved Company
Ownership Reporting of Shares Secretaries

Secretarial Issues on Post-Incorporation | Institute of Approved Company
Matters, Auditors, Directors, Shares and | Secretaries

Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Assessing and Commenting on the | Institute of Approved Company
Practice Notes & Directives Issued by | Secretaries

Companies Commission of Malaysia

Updates on Annual Return, AGMS, | Institute of Approved Company
Accounts and Audit in COVID Era Secretaries

MIA Webinar Series: Capital Reduction &
Members' Voluntary Winding Up

Malaysian Institute of Accountants

Updates on Malaysian Code of Corporate
Governance 2021 (MCCG 2021)

NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd

In addition to the attendance of training provided by external party, during the financial year, all Directors

received regular briefing and update on new regulations and statutory requirements.

* Sustainability Oversight and Management

In order to promote sustainability of the Group’s businesses, one of the business strategies adopted by the
Board is to ensure the sustainability aspects of the businesses undertaken are well taken care of. The
Group upheld the principle to maintain effective Corporate Social Responsibility practice continuously in
order to contribute positively to the socio-economic development of the communities, to promote

environmentally friendly business practices and to uphold good social practice.

One of the key responsibilities of the Board of the Company is to regularly evaluate economic,
environmental, social and governance issues of the Group, to assume the ultimate responsibilities for and
the oversight roles for the sustainability management on group wide basis. The sustainability management
of the Group is governed by the Sustainability Policy established the Board. Formal governance structure,
stakeholders’ engagement and process to identify, assess and formulation and monitoring of responses to
material sustainability issues are prescribed in such policy with the assessment results and responses are
fed into risk management process of the Group for continuous monitoring. As an important communication
with stakeholders of the Group, Sustainability Statement was published along with the Annual Report for the

financial year under review.

One of the responsibilities of the Board of the Company is to evaluate the sustainability risks and
opportunities regularly, including taking into consideration of the changes in the external business
environment or the interests of the stakeholders. Periodic review, led by the Chief Executive Director and
Executive Director who are the designated senior management personnel on the strategic sustainability
management, on the sustainability matters (including climate change risks and opportunities) faced by the
Group and corresponding strategies and responses formulated was performed with escalation mechanism
put in place to report on the timely basis on sustainability matters and their corresponding strategies and
responses as well as performances from the heads of departments to the Board as governance body of the
Company. The review of the sustainability and stakeholders’ engagement activities, sustainability strategies
and responses and actual performances of responses to sustainability matters was performed by the Board

Risk Management Committee and the Board during the financial year under review.

Please refer to the Practice 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 of the CG Report and the Sustainability Statement for
the governance structure and process employed as well as the identification, assessment, management

and reporting of sustainability matters during the financial year under review.
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Principle B — Effective Audit and Risk Management

The Audit Committee is also tasked to oversight the role on the effectiveness of audit and internal controls of the
Group. The composition, activities carried out during the financial year under review, including the number of
meetings held and attendance are disclosed in the Audit Committee Report set out in this Annual Report and

Practice 9.1 to 9.5 of CG Report.

¢ Relationship with External Auditors

The Group maintains a close and transparent relationship with the group’s external auditor in seeking
professional advice and ensuring compliance with the approved accounting standards, relevant rules and
regulations and Group’s policies and procedures. The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee in

relation to the external auditors are prescribed in the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference.

The engagement of external auditors is governed by the engagement letter with terms of engagement
(which includes, among others, the scope of audit, the responsibilities of external auditors, confidentiality,
independence and the proposed fees) reviewed by the Audit Committee and its recommendation to the

Board.

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors fourfold during the financial year under review (including
two (2) private session without management’s presence) to discuss on audit plans, audit findings, financial
statements and other special matters that require the Audit Committee’s attention. The Audit Committee
also encourages free flow of information and views between Audit Committee and external auditor to allow

external auditor to freely express their opinion without undue pressure.

The oversight of the external auditors was enhanced by the conduct of performance evaluation of external
auditors by the Audit Committee and subsequently reported to the Board. Additionally, through the Audit
Plan and Audit Result submitted by the external auditors and written confirmation provided during the Audit
Committee meetings, the external auditors of the Company confirmed on their independence and objectivity
for the audit engagement for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with the By-laws of

the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

The summary of Audit Committees’ activities and oversights of external and internal auditors during the

financial year under review is available in Audit Committee Report set out in this Annual Report.

¢ Uphold Integrity in Financial Reporting

The Board takes responsibility to present a balanced, clear and meaningful report on the Group’s financial
positions and business prospects to its shareholders, investors and the regulatory authorities via timely

release of quarterly reports, annual reports and regular announcements on material business matters.

The quarterly results and annual financial statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and
recommended to the Board for approval before releasing to the public, via Bursa Securities’ website. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the appropriateness of the Company’s and Group’s accounting policies and
the changes to these policies as well as ensures the financial statements are drawn up in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 and applicable accounting standards.

The Board, through the review by the Audit Committee and consultation with the Management and the
external auditors, had presented fair and meaningful assessment of the Group’s financial performance and

position.

A summary of the functions and duties of Audit Committee in the oversight of financial reporting for the

financial year are available in the Audit Committee Report set out in this Annual Report.
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* Risk Management

The Board affirm its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound risk management and internal control
system in pursuing the Company’s objectives and have in place a formal Group Risk Management
Framework. The details of the Group Risk Management Framework and risk management process are
disclosed in Practice 10.1 and 10.2 of the CG Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal
Control of this Annual Report.

¢ Internal Control and Internal Audit Function

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. This includes ensuring the review of the
adequacy and integrity of the system of internal control in managing the principal risks of the Group. The
Group outsources its Internal Audit function to a qualified professional firm to assist the Audit Committee in
reviewing the state of internal control of the Group and to highlight areas for management and operational
improvements.

The state of internal control system and Internal Audit function of the Group are explained in greater detail
in Practice 11.1 and 11.2 of the CG Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of this
Annual Report.

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the MMLR is set
out in this Annual Report. The statements provide a further in depth in the Group’s policies and activities
undertaken to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk and control structures and processes.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are required under the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 to prepare financial statements as
at the end of each financial year in accordance with applicable approved accounting standards and which gives
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and their financial results and cash flows
for each financial year.

The Directors are of the view that the Group and the Company have adopted suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, as well as ensured
that all applicable accounting standards have been followed, and confirm that the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and of the Company, and which enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2016. The Directors are also responsible
for taking necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group, and to prevent and detect fraud as well as other
irregularities.
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Principle C — Integrity in Corporate Reporting and Meaningful Relationship with
Stakeholders

e Corporate Disclosure and Stakeholders Communication

The Company recognises the value of transparent, consistent and coherent communications with
investment community consistent with commercial confidentiality and regulatory considerations. The
Company aims to build a long-term relationships with shareholders and potential investors through
appropriate channels with the Board and disclosure of information. The corporate disclosure process and
mechanism is guided by a formal Corporate Disclosure Policy.

The Board provides timely disclosure of all material information of the Group to shareholder through
announcements made on Bursa Securities and with link on such announcement made available in the
Company’s website (www.ornapaper.com). The Board is observing all disclosure requirements as laid down
in the MMLR in order to have all material events and information to be disseminated publicly and
transparently on a timely basis to ensure a fair and equitable access by all stakeholders without selective
disclosure of such information to specific individuals or groups.

The Annual Report is the main channel of communication between the Company and its stakeholders. The
Annual Report communicates comprehensive information of the financial results and activities undertaken
by the Group. As a listed issuer, the contents and disclosure requirements of the annual report are also
governed by the MMLR.

The content of the Corporate Disclosure Policy and channel of communications and processes used by the
Company for Stakeholders communications are further discussed in Practice 12.1 of the CG Report.

¢ Encourage Shareholder Participation at General Meetings

The Company’s General Meetings serves as one of the key avenues of communication with its
shareholders, which provides a useful forum for shareholders to engage directly with the Company’s
Directors. During the general meeting, shareholders are at liberty to raise questions or seek clarification on
the agenda items of the general meeting from the Company’s Directors. The agenda of the meeting and its
proposed resolutions are to be provided at least twenty-eight (28) days prior to the meeting to ensure
sufficient time and information are provided to the shareholders prior to attending the general meeting.
Please refer to Practice 13.1 of the CG Report on further disclosure on the distribution and content of the
Notice of general meeting.

The Company provides information to the shareholders on, amongst others, the Annual Report, details of
the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), their entitlement to attend the Annual General Meeting, the right to
appoint a proxy as well as the qualifications of a proxy.

To further promote participation of members through proxy(ies), the Company had amended its Constitution
to include explicitly the right of proxies to speak at general meetings, to allow a member who is an exempt
authorized nominee to appoint multiple proxies for each omnibus account it holds and expressly disallow
any restriction on proxy’s qualification.
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Adequate time is given during the general meetings to encourage and allow the shareholders to seek
clarification or ask questions on pertinent and relevant matters. In order to facilitate and provide more
meaningful response to question raise by shareholders, all Directors except the Non-Executive Non
Independent Director had attended the 19th AGM. The external auditors were present at the 19th AGM
virtually to provide professional and independent clarification on issues and concerns raised by the

shareholders during the meeting.

* Poll Voting

In compliance with the Paragraph 8.29A(1) of MMLR, The Company is required to ensure that any
resolutions set out in the notice of general meetings is to be voted by poll. All resolutions put forth for
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 20th Annual General Meeting are to be voted by way of poll

voting.

* Leverage on Information Technology for General Meetings

Amid COVID-19 pandemic and as part of the safety measure, the Group conducted its 19th Annual AGM in
fully virtual platform on 11 June 2021. The virtual general meeting allows shareholders to exercise their right
to participate, pose questions, and vote at the general meeting safely and remotely via Remote Participation
and Voting (“RPV”) facility, after successfully registered online (subject to verification and onboarding

process of the RPV facility).

The 19th AGM was broadcast via RPV facility and conducted in a fully virtual basis where all meeting
participants including the Chairperson of the meeting, board members, senior management and
shareholders participate in the meeting online. The poll administrator and RPV facility service were provided
by reputable professional firm in Malaysia with extensive experiences in poll administering services and
comprehensive RPV facility in terms of functionality and performance. The Administrative Guide for
attending the 19th AGM was issued and published in the RPV facility so that the shareholders were guided
on steps required from the shareholders before the date of general meeting and during the meeting. The
shareholders were able to participate and interact with the Board actively in the general meeting via live
streaming of general meeting proceeding on their devices and submission of their question via query box of
the RPV facility to the Board of the Company during the meeting. Sufficient time was allocated for the
shareholders to pose questions to the Board of the Company via RPV facility and all pertinent questions
relevant to the agendas of the general meeting were answered by the Board of the Company via the live

streaming broadcasted before poll voting started.

The key matters discussed during such meeting was uploaded to the “Annual General Meeting” section of
the “Investor Relations” of the Company’s website at www.ornapaper.com within 30 business days from the

date of the general meeting held.

The details of the features and activities of the virtual general meeting and RPV facility are disclosed in
Practice 13.3, 13.4 and 13.5 of CG Report while the explanation for departure of the practice in regards on
the publication of minutes of the meeting within 30 business days after the conclusion of the general

meeting is disclosed in Practice 13.6 of CG Report.
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Key Focus Areas and Future Priorities

The key focus areas of the Board during the financial year were to preserve governance practices championed
and approved by the Board during the challenging time of COVID-19 pandemic. It entailed prioritizing the safety
and health of the employees of the Group, ensuring business and operation continuity, leveraging on virtual
meeting technology for board meetings and general meeting held during the financial year under review and to
continue update shareholders and interested stakeholders on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Group.

With the new measures of MCCG came effective from 28 April 2021 as well as revision of Guidelines on
Conduct of Directors of Listed Corporations and Their Subsidiaries by Securities Commission (“the Guidelines)
during the financial year, the Board of the Company had taken necessary initiatives to understand the enhance
corporate governance measures promoted by the revisions and to update the Board Charter and relevant board
policies and procedures to be in line with, to the extent practical, the updated MCCG and the Guidelines. The
enhanced corporate governance practices incorporated into board policies and procedures during the year were
incorporation of fit and proper assessment for appointment and re-appointment of the Directors and members
of Key Senior Management, formalisation of process of re-appointment of the retiring Directors (including fit and
proper and conflict of interest check), two-tier voting for independent directs seeking for continuation in office for
nine (9) years or more, incorporation of sustainability considerations in performance evaluation and review of
remunerations of the Directors and members of Senior Management, further enhancement to the proceedings
of virtual general meeting to ensure interactive session between the Board and the shareholders and extension
of relevant policies and procedures on group wide basis.

It is the short term focus of the Board to ensure that the Chairman of the Board will not be participating in any of
the Board Committees’ meetings even by way of invitation, all directors attend general meeting and meeting
minutes of the forthcoming 20th AGM to be published on the Company’s website within 30 business days from
the date of general meeting held.

In the medium to longer term, the Board is aiming to have more than one (1) female director on the Board and

at least one (1) women representation at the Key Senior Management (shall such vacancy available at the Key
Senior Management level).

Additional Disclosure Under MMLR

e Utilisation of Proceeds
The Company did not implement any fund-raising exercise during the financial year ended 31 December
2021.

« Employee Share Scheme
The Company did not establish any employee share scheme and there was no subsisting employee share
scheme during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
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¢ Audit and Non-audit Fees
The audit and non-audit fees incurred for services rendered by the external auditor and their affiliated firms
and companies to the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 are as

follow:
Company Group Details on Non-Audit
Fees
Audit Fees (RM) 40,000 199,580 Nil
Tax computation and

3,000 35,000 administration
Non-Audit Fees (RM) Review of Statement of
5,000 5,000 Risk Management and

Internal Control

e Material Contracts
During the financial year, except for the recurrent related party transaction disclosed, there was no other
material contracts and loans entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries involving interests of Directors,
Chief Executive who is not a Director and major shareholders.

* Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature (RRPT)
The breakdown of the aggregate value of the RRPT of a revenue or trading nature during the financial year

ended 31 December 2021 are as follow:

Below are RRPT that with shareholders’ mandate obtained in the last 19th Annual General Meeting:

Name of Related Interested Directors Nature of RRPT Aggregate Value of
Parties and Major Transactions (RM)
Shareholders
Julie’s Manufacturing Sai Chin Hock?, Sales of corrugated carton (9,449,198)
Sdn. Bhd. (“dM”) Sai Ah Sai# and Sai Han| boxes by  Ornapaper
Siong* Industry (M) Sdn. Bhd.

(“OISB”)
Sales of stationery product (16,032)
by Quantum Rhythm Sdn.
Bhd. (“QRSB")

STH Wire Industry (M) | Sai Chin Hock” and his | Sales of corrugated carton (65,722)

Sdn. Bhd. (“STH”) son, Sai Seak Chyuan,| boxes by OISB

are directors of STH Sales of stationery (1,128)

products by QRSB
Purchase of stitching wire 517,839
by Group

Johmewah Maju Paper | Sai Swee Seong@ Sales of waste paper by (349,779)

Mill Sdn. Bhd. (“JMPM”") Ornapaper Industry (Batu
Pahat) Sdn. Bhd. (“OIBP”)
Purchase of paper roll by 5,593,909
Group
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Fairway Review Sdn. Sai Swee Seong@, Sai Factory rental incurred by 649,000
Bhd. ("FRSB’) Han Siong* and Sai Ah QRSB
Sai#
Uptrend Performer Sai Swee Seong@ Factory maintenance 815,685
Sdn. Bhd. (“UPSB”) expenses and factory
construction incurred by
the Group
Perfect Food Sai Chin Hock? Sales of  corrugated Nil
Manufacturing (M) carton boxes by OISB;
Sdn. Bhd. and Sales of stationery
(“PFM") product by QRSB

Notes:

A

Sai Chin Hock is brother of Sai Ah Sai and is a Director and a Major Shareholder of ORNA. Sai Chin
Hock is also a Director and deemed a substantial shareholder of PFM and JM, by virtue of his
substantial shareholdings in Julie’s Corporation Sdn. Bhd., the holding company of PFM and JM.

Sai Ah Sai is elder brother of Sai Chin Hock and the father of Sai Han Siong and Sai Swee Seong. Sai
Ah Sai is a Director and a Major Shareholder of ORNA. Sai Ah Sai is also a Director of JM, FRSB and
Julie’s Corporation Sdn. Bhd., the holding company of JM.

Sai Han Siong is the son of Sai Ah Sai, the nephew of Sai Chin Hock and the brother of Sai Swee
Seong. Sai Hon Siong is a Director and a Major Shareholder of ORNA. Sai Han Siong is also a
Director of JM and Julie’s Corporation Sdn. Bhd., the holding company of JM., and deemed a
substantial shareholder of JM, by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Julie’s Corporation Sdn.
Bhd., the holding company of JM. Sai Han Siong is also a director and substantial shareholder of
FRSB.

Sai Swee Seong is the son of Sai Ah Sai and elder brother of Sai Han Siong. Sai Swee Seong is a
Director of FRSB, JMPM and UPSB respectively. He is also a substantial shareholder of FRSB and
UPSB.

Factory rented by QRSB comprises of office, production and warehouse located at No. 1, Jalan
Perindustrian Bachang Baru 3, Kawasan Perindustrian Batu Berendam Fasa |V, Batu Berendam,
75350 Melaka for a tenancy period of 1 year commenced from 1 October 2020 and expiring on 30
September 2021 at a monthly rental of RM53,000.00.

Maintenance job provides by UPSB is for upkeeping of offices and factories of ORNA Group.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board dated 14 April 2022.
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COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:-

Name Designation Position
Siow Kee Yen Independent Non-Executive Director Chairman
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin Independent Non-Executive Director Member
Tan Chin Hwee Independent Non-Executive Director Member

The composition of the Audit Committee is in compliance with the paragraph 15.09 of the Main Market Listing
Requirement (“MMLR”) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, where the Audit Committee consists of three
(3) Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Audit Committee Chairman, Mr. Siow Kee Yen is a member of
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants which fulfills the requirements under paragraph 15.09(1)(c)(i) and
Paragraph 7.1 of Practice Note 13 of the MMLR. The Audit Committee meets the requirement under Step Up
Practice 9.4 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (‘“MGGC”) 2021 whereby the committee compris-
es solely of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

No alternate director has been appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
In compliance with Practice 9.1 of the MCCG 2021, the Chairman of the Audit Committee is not the Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is not a member of the Audit

Committee pursuant to Practice 1.4 of the MCCG 2021.

The profile of the members can be found on the Profile of the Directors set out in this Annual Report.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference of Audit Committee is published on the Company’s website (www.ornapaper.com)
under “Corporate Governance” section of “Investor Relations”.

MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, there were a total of five (5) meetings held by the Audit
Committee and details of the attendance of the Audit Committee members are as follows:-

Name Number of Audit Committee Meetings Attended
Siow Kee Yen 5/5
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin 5/5
Tan Chin Hwee 5/5

Notice and Agenda of the Audit Committee meetings were given to the Audit Committee members together with
the minutes of the previous meeting and relevant meeting papers at least five (5) business days before the
meetings. As such, the members had sufficient time to review all papers to enable them to discharge their duties
and responsibilities diligently and effectively in compliance with the MMLR and its Terms of Reference.
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The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Audit Committee and is responsible, together with the Chairman
of Audit Committee, to issue and circulate the agenda, supported by relevant meeting papers prior to each
meeting. The Company Secretary had attended all the meetings during the financial year.

The Accounts Manager and representatives from the Company’s external and internal auditors were also invited
to attend the meetings and present their reports, findings or required information and explanations for proper
deliberation of the matters at hand during the meetings.

The Audit Committee reported to and updated the Board on significant issues and matters discussed during the
Committee’s meetings and where appropriate, made the necessary recommendations to the Board. Minutes of
the Committee’s meetings were made available to all Board Members for review and to seek clarification and
confirmation from the Audit Committee Chairman where necessary.

SUMMARY OF WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR

The following is a summary of the works performed by the Audit Committee during the financial year ended 31
December 2021:-

a) Review the Quarterly Financial Reports

During the scheduled quarterly meetings, the Accounts Manager presented the draft unaudited quarterly
financial statements including statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of cash flow and notes to the accounts for the Audit Committee’s review. The review focused
on key financial results with comparative figures of the preceding quarter and the preceding year’s
corresponding quarter, with the reasons for the variances provided and discussed with the Management.
Additionally, prospects of the Group provided by the Management with regards to the Group’s performance
for the coming quarter and year were also presented to the Audit Committee for discussion.

The results of the quarterly financial reports reviewed by the Audit Committee were then recommended to
the Board for approval prior to announcement to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

b) Review the External Auditors’ Scope of Work and Audit Plans for the Year

During the financial year, the external auditors presented the Audit Plan to the Audit Committee for review
and comment prior to the commencement of the audit engagement to ensure the scope of audit is adequate
and reasonable time was allowed for the audit to be carried out effectively and not under undue time
pressure.

The Audit Plan presented by the external auditors covers the audit approach, areas of audit emphasis
(including assessment on impact of COVID-19), group audit approach, COVID-19 considerations,
considerations of works internal auditor, reporting and deliverables, management communication channels,
engagement team, fraud consideration, responsibilities of the directors and management as well as the
external auditors, independence declaration under ISA 300 : Planning an Audit of Financial Statements and
By-Laws (On Professional Conduct and Ethics) by the Malaysia Institute of Accountants for the statutory
audit and development in accounting standards for the financial year. The Audit Plan for the financial year
was discussed during the meeting and clarifications was sought from the external auditors prior to approval
of the said plan by the Audit Committee.
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During the same meeting, the proposed audit fees and non-audit fees were also presented by the external
auditors for review by the Audit Committee, which was then recommended to the Board for approval.

c) Review the Audited Financial Statements and Audit Results with External Auditors

Prior to announcement of final quarterly unaudited financial statements, the audit results for the audit
conducted on the financial statements of the Group were presented by the external auditors to the Audit
Committee for review.

During the same meeting, expected opinion on the financial statements was sought from the external
auditors. The report on the audit results provides the status of the group audit, significant accounting and
auditing findings, results of assessment of impact of COVID-19, summary of uncorrected misstatements,
internal control observations, status of group audits, independence declaration per By-Laws (on Profession-
al Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of MIA and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, proposed audit fees, related party transactions
and outstanding confirmation and information. In addition, confirmation was sought from external auditors
by the Audit Committee that the expected audited profit after taxation for the financial year is expected to be
not deviated by 10% or more from unaudited profit after taxation per final quarterly financial statements to
be made by the Company for that period.

For the review of the audited statutory financial statements by the Audit Committee, the Report to Audit
Committee which highlights the key audit matters, a summary of corrected and uncorrected misstatements,
significant related parties transactions and balances, development in accounting standards, internal control
observations, expected opinion on the audit of financial statements, going concern, results from the review
of Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control and draft Annual Report was presented by the
external auditors to the Audit Committee.

The audited financial statements of the Company and Group were recommended by the Audit Committee
for the Board’s approval and adoption after its review with the external auditors and the Management and
was satisfied that the audit had been adequately planned and carried out in accordance with the approved
auditing standards and the audited statutory financial statements have been prepared in full compliance
with the applicable approved accounting standards and statutory requirements.

d) Conduct of Performance Evaluation and Independent Assessment on External Auditors

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee conducted performance evaluation and
independent assessment on external auditors via the External Auditors Evaluation Form with prescribed
criteria per the Corporate Governance Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad such as,
caliber of the firm, quality processes and performance, knowledge and skill sets of audit team as well as
independence and objectivity, audit scope, audit planning and audit communication. In addition, during the
meetings with the external auditors, the external auditors confirmed with the Audit Committee on their
independence in relation to the audit works performed and their commitment to communicate to the Audit
Committee on their independence status on ongoing manner. The Audit Committee have also reviewed the
non-audit services provided by external auditors to the Group during the year in accordance with the
independence requirements and was not aware of any non-audit services that have compromised their
independence as external auditors of the Group and the Company.
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e)

9)

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the performance and independence of the external auditors and
recommended to the Board on their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the next financial year
ended 31 December 2022.

Meeting with External Auditors Without the Presence of the Executive Directors and Management

The Audit Committee met twice with the external auditors on 22 April 2021 and 29 November 2021 without
the presence of the Executive Directors and Management where they are given the opportunity to raise any
concern or professional opinion and thus, to be able to exert its functions independently.

During the private session, the external auditors informed the Audit Committee that there was no major audit
issue to be highlighted to the Audit Committee.

Review the Adequacy and Relevance of the Scope, Functions and Resources, Internal Audit Plan
and Results from the Internal Audit Reviews with the Group’s Internal Audit Function

During the financial year, the Audit Committee received internal audit reports presented by the
outsourced internal audit function that contain the findings, priority rating, risks/implications, root causes,
recommendations and agreed management action plans for the internal audits performed based on the
approved internal audit plan. Aside from reporting on the audit findings, the status of implementation of the
agreed management action plans for previous internal audit findings were also reported to the Audit
Committee for its review.

During the same meetings, the progress of the approved internal audit plan was presented to the Audit
Committee for their review and revision of the internal audit focus and scope, if deemed necessary by the
Audit Committee based on the risk consideration. In addition, the outsourced internal audit function reported
to the Audit Committee, through progress update report, the resources, experience, competency and
continuous professional development of the outsourced internal audit function for its review on adequacy.

The oversight role of the Audit Committee on the outsourced internal audit function is available in the
Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control set out in this Annual Report.

Conduct of Performance Evaluation on Outsourced Internal Audit Function

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee conducted performance evaluation on the
outsourced internal audit function via the Evaluation of Internal Audit Function Form with prescribed criteria
per the Corporate Governance Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad such as, audit scope,
audit planning, audit communication, audit performed based on the adoption of recognized internal audit
framework, effectiveness of internal audit function, adequacy of resources and experience and competency
of the head of internal audit function.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the performance of the outsourced internal audit function and

recommended to the Board for re-appointment of the outsourced internal audit function as internal auditors
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022.
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h)

)

k)

Review the Disclosure of Related Party Transactions and Conflict-of-Interest Situation

During the scheduled quarterly meetings, updates on the value of the individual Recurrent Related Party
Transactions (“RRPT”) transactions (from date of shareholders’ mandate to the end of financial period) as
compared to the approved value of transactions per the shareholders’ mandate obtained in the previous
general meeting were reported by the Accounts Manager to the Audit Committee for its review. This enabled
the Audit Committee to take prompt action in resolving the matter in the event the RRPT is about to exceed
or exceeded by 10% of the mandated amount.

Aside from the updates on RRPT, the Audit Committee was also informed on the related party transaction
that was not required to be announced in accordance with Chapter 10.09(1) of the MMLR.

During the meeting, the Audit Committee noted that the RRPTs and related party transactions were on
terms and not more favourable than those generally available to the public.

Review Latest Changes and Development in Regulatory, Statutory and Accounting Standards

During the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee was kept informed of new and revised
accounting standards through the disclosures in the quarterly report announcements and through briefings
provided by the external auditors. In addition, briefings on the updates and changes to the MCCG 2021,
the Guidelines on Conduct of Directors of Listed Corporations and Their Subsidiaries, MMLR compliances
as well as other legal and regulatory requirements were provided to the Audit Committee members and the
Board members by professionals.

Review the Draft Circular to Shareholders on the Proposed Renewal of Existing Shareholders’
Mandate for RRPTs of a Revenue or Trading Nature and Share Buy-Back Statement in relation to the
Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its Own Shares

Based on the review of the draft circulars and relevant procedures set out in the draft circular in relation to
the proposed renewal of shareholders’ mandate for RRPTs, the Audit Committee was of the opinion that the
procedures were sufficient to ensure RRPT is entered into at arm’s length and in accordance with the
Company’s normal commercial terms and on terms which are not more favourable to the Related Parties
than those generally available to the public, and not the detriment of the minority shareholders of the
Company.

On the other hand, the focus of the review by the Audit Committee on the draft circular on the share
buy-back statement was in compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Review of Statements and Reports Disclosed in Annual Report

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Corporate Governance Report, Corporate Governance Overview
Statement, Audit Committee Report, Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, Management
Discussion and Analysis, Sustainability Statement and other information required for disclosure (such as
profile of Directors and Key Senior Management, Share Buy-Back Statement, RRPTs, etc.) as well as the
audited financial statement of the Company to ensure compliance with MMLR, MCCG and other guidelines
and forthwith recommended to the Board for approval and publication in the Company’s Annual Report.
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) Review of Sustainability Matters Assessment Result of the Group

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Sustainability Matter Follow Up and Control Report presented by the
Management. The review conducted by the Audit Committee was on the management responses to the
results of the sustainability assessment and sustainability activities undertaken or to be undertaken. The
Audit Committee subsequently reported the results of review to the Board.

m) Others

» The proceedings of the Audit Committee meetings, significant issues and concerns discussed and where
appropriate, recommendations were reported to the Board by the Audit Committee Chairman, with the
minutes of the Audit Committee made available to all board members for review and to seek clarification
and confirmation from Audit Committee Chairman if required.

» The Audit Committee had reviewed its term of reference and proposed the updates and changes in the
term of reference to the Board for its review and approval.

* The Audit Committee had reviewed the proposed Conflict of Interest and Related Party Transaction
Policy and recommendation on such policy was made to the Board for approval.

* The Audit Committee had reviewed the proposed updates and changes in the Code of Conduct,
Whistleblowing Policy, Sustainability Policy, Policies and Procedures to Assess the Suitability and
Independence of and the Provision of Non-Audit Service By External Auditors and recommendations on
such updates and changes were made to the Board for approval.

SUMMARY OF WORK OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group’s internal audit function is outsourced to an independent professional firm, namely Needsbridge
Advisory Sdn. Bhd. The outsourced internal audit function reports directly to the Audit Committee and assists
the Board and Audit Committee in providing an independent assessment of the adequacy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The appointment and resignation of the internal audit
function as well as the proposed audit fees are subject to review and approval by the Audit Committee for its
reporting to the Board for ultimate approval.

The audit engagement of the outsourced internal audit function is governed by engagement letter and Internal
Audit Charter approved by the Board during the financial year under review. Key terms of engagement include
the purpose and scope of work, accountability, independence, responsibilities of each party, the authority
accorded to the outsourced internal audit function, limitation of scope of works, confidentiality, proposed fees
and engagement team. On the other hand, the Internal Audit Charter governs the internal audit function by
specifying the purpose and mission of internal audit function, its roles, professionalism required (including
adherence to The Institute of Internal Auditors' mandatory guidance including the Core Principles for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (hereinafter referred to as “Standards”),
its authorities, the reporting structure, independence and objectivity required, its responsibilities, purpose of
internal audit plan, reporting and monitoring and quality assurance and improvement programme.
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The scope of review by the outsourced internal audit function is determined through the internal audit plan,
determined and approved by the Audit Committee with feedbacks from Key Senior Management. In assisting
the Audit Committee in discharging its oversight role for the internal audit function, the Audit Committee, through
the reports tabled by the outsourced internal audit function, was able to assess and review the outsourced
internal audit function in terms of the qualification, experience, exposure and continuous professional
development of the outsourced internal audit function during the financial year under review. The performance,
independence and objectivity of the internal audit function is formally evaluated by the Audit Committee through
Evaluation for Internal Audit Function Form adapted from Corporate Governance Guide issued by Bursa
Malaysia Berhad.

To preserve the independence and objectivity, the outsourced internal audit function is not permitted to act
on behalf of Management, decide and implement management action plan, perform on-going internal control
monitoring activities (except for follow up on progress of action plan implementation), authorize and execute
transactions, prepare source documents on transactions, have custody of assets or act in any capacity
equivalent to a member of the Management or the employee. The outsourced internal audit function is accorded
unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, personnel, Audit Committee and other specialized servic-
es from within or outside the Group and necessary assistance of personnel in units of the Group where they
perform audits.

During the financial year, the outsourced internal audit function conducted scheduled internal audits in accord-
ance with the internal audit plan (and any amendments thereof) approved by the Audit Committee. Internal
control deficiencies and areas for improvement identified together with the recommendations and management
action plans were presented during the corresponding Audit Committee meetings. Follow up reviews were
carried out to ascertain the status of implementation of agreed management action plans. The results of the
follow up reviews were reported to the Audit Committee.

Further details on outsourced internal audit function and activities are disclosed in the Statement of Risk
Management and Internal Control set out in this Annual Report.
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INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to paragraph 15.26(b) and Practice Note 9 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Main Market
Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”) in relation to requirement to prepare statement about the
state of internal control of the listed issuer as a group, and as guided by the Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Guidelines”) and the Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) 2021, the Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Ornapaper Berhad (“Ornapaper”
or “the Company”) (collectively with its subsidiaries, “the Group”) is pleased to present the statement on the
state of the internal controls of the Group for the financial year under review and up to the date of approval of
this statement. The scope of this Statement covers the Company and its subsidiaries.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound governance, risk management and internal
control systems and for reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness so as to provide assurance on the
achievement of the Group’s mission, vision, core values, strategies and business objectives as well as
to safeguard all its stakeholders’ interests and protecting the Group’s assets. The Board is to establish risk
appetite of the Group based on the risk capacity, strategies, business objectives, internal and external business
context, business nature and corporate lifecycle. The Board is committed to the establishment and maintenance
of an appropriate control environment and governance framework that is embedded into the corporate culture,
processes and strategies of the Group as well as to articulate and implement risk management and internal
control system. The Board delegates the duty of identification, assessment and management of key business
risks to Risk and Sustainability Management Committee (“RSMC”) while the oversight roles are delegated to
Board Risk Management Committee (“‘BRMC”) (for risk management) and Audit Committee (“AC”) (for internal
controls) whereby BRMC and AC are assigned with the duty, vide Group Risk Management Framework and
Terms of Reference respectively as approved by the Board, to provide assurance to the Board on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the Group respectively. Through BRMC
and AC, the Board is kept informed on all significant risk events and control issues brought to the attention of
BRMC and AC by the Management, the internal audit function and the external auditors, and the Board are
provided with reasonable assurance that any impact arising from foreseeable future events or situations are
properly managed and/or mitigated.

The system of internal controls covers inter-alia, control environment, risk assessment control activities,
information and communication and monitoring activities. However, in view of the limitations that are inherent in
any system of internal controls, the system of internal controls is designed to manage, rather than to eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives. Accordingly, the system of internal controls can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of losses and fraud.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board maintains an on-going commitment for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced
by the Group during the financial year under review. As the Second Line, the Board has put in place a structured
Group Risk Management Framework that are integrated, as the governance structure and processes for the risk
management on enterprise wide, in order to embed the risk management practice into all level of the Group and
to manage key business risks faced by the Group as well as to optimize key business opportunities available to
the Group adequately and effectively. The duties for the identification, evaluation and management of the key
business risks are delegated to RSMC, led by Chief Executive Director (“CED”) with designated Executive
Director as alternate Chairman, in the absence of CED.
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The principles, practices and process of the Group Risk Management Framework established by the Board are,
in material respect, guided by the ISO 31000:2018 — Risk Management- Principles and Guidelines

The Group Risk Management Framework established lays down the risk management’s objectives and
processes established by the Board with formalised governance structure of the risk management activities of
the Group established as follow:

[ The Board }

T
[ 1

[ Audit Committee Board Risk Management
T Committee

I

Risk and Sustainability
Management

T

[ Risk Owners }

(N

[ Internal Audit }

Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board, the BRMC, the AC, the RSMC, Risk Owners, Key Risk &
Sustainability Officer (“KRSO”) and Internal Audit Function are defined in the Group Risk Management
Framework. In particular the composition, roles and responsibilities of the BRMC and RSMC are listed below.

The BRMC is made up of all Independent Non-Executive Directors and their roles and responsibilities are as
follow:

(a) Review, assess, formulate and recommend risk management strategies, framework, policies, processes,
tolerance and risk appetite limits to the Board;

(b) Monitoring of Group risk exposures to ensure implementation and compliance with approved risk policies
and processes of the Group, and to ensure that significant risks identified are being responded to
appropriately;

(c) Review status of management action in mitigating significant risks identified;

(d) Review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management structure, approved risk
policies, processes, and support system and to recommend such changes as may be deemed necessary
to the Board;

(e) Review and assess the risks associated with all proposed strategic transactions of the Group and report the
same to the Board for its deliberation of the transaction;

(f) Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls established by the
Management to manage key business risks through internal audit reports from internal audit function; and

(g9) To coordinate with the Audit Committee on the activities of the internal audit function of the Group in relation
to the review of risk management policy, structure, processes and activities and to ensure significant
business risks are adequately managed by the Group.

The RSMC members are nominated employees from various divisions in the Group (i.e. Executive Directors and
Head of Departments) and is chaired by CED and the Chief Operation Officer as the KRSO. The roles and
Responsibilities of RSMC are as follow:

(a) Implement the risk management policy as approved by the Board;

(b) Implement the risk management process which includes the identification of key risks and devising
appropriate action plan(s) in cases where existing controls are ineffective, inadequate or non-existence and
communicate methodology to the Risk Owners;
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(c) Ensure that risk strategies adopted are aligned with the Group’s organisational strategies. (e.g. vision/
mission, corporate strategies/goals, etc.), risk management policy & process and risk appetite/tolerance;

(d) Continuous review and update of the Key Risk Registers of the Group due to changes in internal business
processes, business strategies or external environment and determination of management action plan, if
required;

(e) Update the Board, through the BRMC, on changes to the Key Risk Registers on periodical basis (at least
on annual basis) or when appropriate (due to significant change to the internal business processes,
business strategies or external environment) and the course of action to be taken by management in
managing the changes; and

(f) To perform risk identification and assessment in relation to major asset/business acquisition or divestment
or business diversification or business consolidation through the use of prescribed form and to report the
results of the assessment to the Board for strategic decision making.

In addition, the Risk Owners which is made up of the Operational Management team, i.e. Managers and Head
of Department, is designated as Risk Owners within their area of expertise and delegated with following
responsibilities:

(a) Manage the risks of the business processes under his/her control;

(b) Continuously identify risks and evaluate existing controls. If controls deemed ineffective, inadequate or
non-existent, to establish and implement controls to reduce the likelihood and/or impact.

(c) To report to the RSMC of the emergence of new business risk or change in the existing business risks
through the use of prescribed form on a timely manner and assist the RSMC.

(d) With the development of the management action plans and implement these action plans;

(e) Assist the RSMC with the half-yearly update of the changes in the Key Risks Register, management action
plans and the status of these plans; and

(f) Ensure that staffs working under him/her understand the risk exposure of the relevant process under his/her
duty and the importance of the related controls.

The Group Risk Management Framework specifies the structured risk management process, where each step
of the risk and opportunity identification, evaluation, control identification, treatment and control activities are laid
down for application by the RSMC and Risk Owners.

Risk assessment, at gross and residual level, are guided by the likelihood rating and impact rating that was
established based on the risk appetite acceptable by the Board. Based on the risk management process
stipulated in Group Risk Management Framework, Key Risk Registers are compiled by the KRSO and Risk
Owners, with relevant key risks identified rated based on the approved risk rating before reported to RSMC. The
Key Risk Registers are primarily used for the identification of high residual risks which is above the risk appetite
of the Group that require the Management and the Board’s immediate attention and risk response(s) as well as
for future risk monitoring. Key Risk Registers of key operating subsidiaries and assessment of emerging risks
and opportunities identified at strategic and operational level are subjected to review on annual basis or on
more frequent basis if circumstances required and to report to the BRMC on the results of the review and
assessment.
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The Group has adopted risk-based quality management system and environmental management system in line
with ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015 certification for its key subsidiary. The risk and opportunity
management process, consistent with Group Risk Management Framework approved by the Board, were
executed by Quality Management Representatives (“QMR”), with respective Managers and Heads of
Department (i.e. the Risk Owners) responsible for managing risks and opportunities identified. The risk
assessment process involved risk identification, risk assessment and risk treatment in accordance with Group
Risk Management Framework (including the rating of the likelihood and impact) and documented into Key Risk
Registers (including the action plans to address such risk and/or opportunity). Risk identified includes
sustainability matters identified during sustainability assessment process. The results of the risk and
sustainability assessment process were fed to RSMC for its review and consolidation into the Group’s Key Risk
Profile. Any changes and emerging risk or opportunity and status of risk treatment are highlighted by QMR
and/or Risk Owners during the management review meetings attended by Managers and Head of Departments,
Executive Directors and RSMC.

As at the date of this report, RSMC had conducted assessment exercise whereby existing strategic, governance
and operational risks (in addition to risk identified per ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015 certification) of key
operating subsidiaries were identified, assessed and treated based on the Group Risk Management Framework
approved and incorporated into the Key Risk Registers at subsidiary level for on-going risks and opportunities
monitoring and assessment. While risks identified in Key Risk Registers of key operating subsidiaries are to be
monitored and managed by Risk Owners identified at subsidiary level, such risks were consolidated, based on
nature of risks, into Consolidated Risk Registers at the Group level for monitoring and management by RSMC.

The Key Risk Registers consist of strategic, financial and operational risks and likelihood and impact rating used
were compiled by RSMC and tabled to BRMC for its review and deliberation on its adequacy and effectiveness
and for its reporting the results of review to the Board, which assumes the primary responsibility of the risk
management of the Group.

At operational level, risk management is embedded into key processes at all levels of the organisation structure
whereby respective Head of Departments, as Risk Owners, are delegated with the responsibility to continuously
identify, evaluate and manage the existing and emerging risks, resulting from changes to the internal and
external environment faced by the Group by formulating and implementing adequate and effective internal
controls to minimize the risk exposure identified as First Line. Respective Heads of Department (i.e. Risk
Owners) are responsible for managing the financial and operational risks under their responsibilities by way of
maintaining effective internal controls and having measures to manage such financial and operational risks on
a day-to-day basis. Emergence and changes of financial and operational risks identified are highlighted to the
CED and Executive Director during the weekly Executive Committee (“EXCO”) meetings or monthly
management review meetings for discussion and formulation of effective internal control measures to manage
such new, and changes to the financial and operational risks. The CED and Executive Director are kept up to
date on the implementation and effectiveness of such controls and measures formulated during subsequent
weekly EXCO meetings or monthly management review meetings. Critical or material risks highlighted by the
Risk Owners are reported to BRMC and AC and the Board by the CED and Executive Director for deliberation
and final decisions on the formulation and implementation of effective internal controls in managing such risks.

At strategic level, business strategies with risk considerations are formulated by the CED and Executive Director
and presented to the Board for review and deliberation to ensure proposed plans and strategies are in line with
the Group’s risk tolerance. In addition, specific strategic and key operational risks are highlighted and
deliberated by Audit Committee and/or the Board during the review of the financial performance of the Group in
the scheduled meetings.
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The monitoring of the risk management by the Group is enhanced by the internal audits carried out by the
internal audit function with specific audit objectives and business risks identified for each internal audit cycles
based on the internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee.

The above process has been practiced by the Group for the financial year under review and up to the date of
approval of this statement.

Please refer to the “Risk Factors Exposure” of the Management Discussion and Analysis for the significant risks
faced by the Group and the mitigation plans implemented.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The key features of the Group’s internal control system are made up of five core components, i.e. Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information and Communication and Monitoring Activities
with principles representing the fundamental concepts associated with each component are as follows:

¢ Board of Directors and Board Committees

The role, functions, composition, operations and processes of the Board are guided by formal Board
Charter whereby roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Directors are specified to preserve the independence of the Board from the Management and to improve
the oversight roles of the Board.

Board Committees (i.e. Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Board
Risk Management Committee) are established to carry out duties and responsibilities delegated by the
Board, governed by written terms of reference.

Meetings of the Board and respective Board Committees are carried out on scheduled basis to review the
performance of the Group, from financial and operational perspective while meetings for Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Board Risk Management committee are carried out at least once
year or whenever deemed necessary. Potential business strategies and business plan are proposed by the
Executive Directors to the Board for its review and approval, after taking risk into consideration and
responses thereto.

* Organisation Structure and Accountability
Clearly defined and structured lines of reporting and responsibility for key business units/departments within
the Group to ensure operational efficiency, accountability and effectiveness. Suitably qualified employees
are employed so that the appropriate level of authorities and responsibilities can be delegated while
accountability of performance and controls are assigned accordingly.

*  Human Resource Management
Job descriptions are established and annual performance appraisals are performed for key positions within

the Group in order to ensure employees are equipped with relevant knowledge and skills required to
perform their duties and responsibilities diligently and effectively.
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Integrity and Ethical Value

The tone from the top on integrity and ethical value are enshrined in the formalized Code of Conduct
updated and approved by the Board on 30 December 2021. This formal code forms the foundation of
integrity and ethical value for the Group.

Integrity and ethical value expected from the employees are incorporated in the Employees Handbook
whereby ethical behaviours expected with customers, suppliers, employees, society and environment are
stated. Code of conduct expected from employees to carry out their duties and responsibilities assigned are
also established and formalised in the Employees Handbook.

To further enhance the ethical value throughout the Group, a formal Anti-Bribery and Corruption Framework
had been put in place by the Management to prevent the risk of bribery and conflict of interest within the
Group with Whistle-blowing Policy implemented for all stakeholders to raise genuine concerns about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting, compliance and other malpractices at the earliest
opportunity.

The Whistle-Blowing policy is established to facilitate the reporting of improper conduct and other offences
to competent governance body with the Group, which is available for download from the “Corporate
Governance” section under “Investor Relations” of the Company’s website for ease of access.

Policies, Procedures and Authorisation Requirements

Policies and standard operating procedures for the Group are established to regulate key processes
in compliance with International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”) certifications. Authorisation
requirement for key processes is clearly defined in the respective policies and procedures and limit of
authority matrix.

Information and Communication

At the operational level, clear reporting lines are established across the Group and operational reports
are prepared for dissemination to relevant personnel for effective communication of critical information
throughout the Group and for timely decision making and execution in pursuit of business objectives.
Matters that require the Board and the Key Senior Management’s attention are highlighted for review,
deliberation and decision on a timely basis.

The Group puts in place effective and efficient information and communication infrastructures and
communication channels i.e., computerised system, secured intranet, electronic mail system and modern
telecommunication and processing system, so that operational data and external data can be collected and
processed into relevant management information and communicated in a timely and secure manner to
dedicated personnel within the Group for decision making and for communication with relevant external
stakeholders.

Communication of policies and procedures of the Group are conducted via written format, information
boards, electronic mail system and in-house trainings by respective risk or control owners.
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* Monitoring and Review

At the operational level, Communication of policies and procedures of the Group are conducted via written
format, information boards, electronic mail system and in-house trainings by respective risk or control
owners. Key performance indicators are formulated on a yearly basis to monitor the performance of key
divisions and departments against targets established for prompt management action to be addressed
for on unsatisfactory performance. During the monthly management review meetings, comprehensive
operational reports are prepared by respective departments to assess the Group’s performance against the
performance indicators established and to discuss on current or new operational risks in order to formulate
and implement mitigating controls.

Aside from the monthly management review meetings, the Executive Directors are closely and directly
involved in operations, with weekly EXCO meetings held with the EXCO team, which consists of Key Senior
Management, for the review of operational information, including, production, marketing and financial
information.

Apart from the Weekly EXCO meetings and monthly management review meetings, Quality Management
System (ISO 9001) are also held to review and discuss on the Group’s performance in relation to the quality
and environmental standards established and to identify areas for improvement in order to achieve the
Group’s quality and environmental objectives.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group relies on internal audit mechanisms to provide the Board and management with the required level of
assurance that the governance, risk management and internal controls are adequate and effective in mitigating
organisational risks so that the business objectives of the Group are achievable.

The Group’s internal audit function is outsourced to an independent professional firm, namely, NeedsBridge
Advisory Sdn Bhd, to provide the Board with the assurance required regarding the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control system. To uphold the professional firm’s independence
and objectivity, the outsourced internal audit function is reporting directly to the AC.

The internal audits are carried out, in material aspect, in accordance with the International Professional Practic-
es Framework (“IPPF”), i.e. Mission, Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, Code of
Ethics and the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing established by the
Institute of Internal Auditors Global (“lIA Global”). The engagement director, Mr. Pang Nam Ming, is a Certified
Internal Auditor (“CIA”), Certification in Risk Management Assurance (‘CRMA”) accredited by
the IIA Global and a professional member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia (“IlAM”). As a CIA, the
engagement director is required to declare the compliance of the Standards to Institute of Internal Auditors
during his renewal as CIA. The audit engagement of the outsourced internal audit function is governed by the
engagement letter with key terms include purpose and scope of works, accountability, independence, the
outsourced internal audit function’s responsibilities, the management’s responsibilities, the authority accorded
to the outsourced internal audit function, limitation of scope of works, confidentiality, proposed fees
and engagement team. The audit engagement is also governed by the Group’s Internal Audit Charter,
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which was established and approved by the Board on 29 November 2021. The appointment and resignation of
the outsourced internal audit function as well as the proposed audit fees are subject to review by the AC and for
its reporting to the Board for ultimate approval. During the financial year under review, the resources allocated
to the fieldworks of the internal audit by the outsourced internal audit function were one (1) manager and
assisted by at least one (1) senior consultant and one (1) consultant per one (1) engagement with oversight
performed by the director.

To preserve the independence and objectivity, the outsourced internal audit function is not permitted to act
on behalf of Management, decide and implement management action plan, perform on-going internal control
monitoring activities (except for follow up on progress of action plan implementation), authorize and execute
transactions, prepare source documents on transactions, have custody of assets or act in any capacity
equivalent to a member of the Management or the employee.

Based on the formal evaluation of internal audit function and review of the works performed and deliverables
(including but not limited to staff strength, qualification, experience, and continuous professional education) by
the outsourced internal audit function during the financial year, the AC and the Board are satisfied:

* that the outsourced internal audit function is free from any relationships or conflicts of interest which could
impair their objectivity and independence;

e with the scope of the outsourced internal audit function;

» that the outsourced internal audit function possesses relevant experience, knowledge, competency and
authority to discharge its functions effectively, possesses sufficient resources and has unrestricted access
to employees and information for the internal audit activities; and

e with the internal audit plan, results, processes, the results of the internal audit and/or investigation
undertaken (if any).

Risk-based internal audit plan in respect of the financial year ended and 31 December 2021 were drafted by the
outsourced internal audit function, after taking into consideration existing and emerging key business risks
identified in the Key Risk Registers, the opinions of the Executive Directors and Key Senior Management and
previous internal audits performed, and was reviewed and approved by the AC prior to execution. Each internal
audit cycle within the internal audit plan is specific with regards to audit objective, key risks to be assessed and
scope of the internal control review.

As Third Line, the internal control review procedures performed by the outsourced internal audit function are
designed to understand, document and evaluate risks and related controls to determine the adequacy and
effectiveness of governance, risk structures, control structures and control processes. The recommendations
from the outsourced internal audit function are formulated for based on the root cause(s) of the internal audit
observations. The internal audit procedures applied principally consisted of process evaluations through
interviews with relevant personnel involved in the process under review, review of the Standard Operating
Procedures and/or process flows provided and observations of the functioning of processes in compliance with
results of interviews and/or documented Standard Operating Procedures and/or process flows. Thereafter,
testing of controls through the review of the samples selected based on sample sizes for the respective audit
areas calculated was in accordance with our predetermined formulation, subject to the nature of testing and
verification of the samples.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, in accordance with the internal audit plan (and any
amendments thereof) approved by AC, the outsourced internal audit function has conducted reviews for
Production Management for one (1) key manufacturing subsidiary in Malaysia as well as a review of the
Company’s governance practices, structures and related policies and procedures in relation to MMLR and
MCCG 2021 (including anti-bribery and corruption and whistleblowing).

Upon the completion of the internal audit field works during the financial year, the internal audit reports were
presented to AC during its scheduled meetings. During the presentation, the internal audit findings priority
level, risk/potential implication, recommendations as well as management responses/action plans and
person-in-charge together with date of implementation were presented and deliberated with AC. This is to
enable the AC to form an opinion on the adequacy and/or effectiveness of the governance, risks and controls of
the business processes under review. Progress follow ups were performed by the outsourced internal audit
function on the management action plans that were not implemented in the previous internal audit fieldworks by
way of verification via observation or through verification of sample provided by person-in-charge to substantiate
the implementation of the management action plan. Together with the internal audit reports, the updates on the
implementation progress of action plans formulated per previous internal audit reports via the Action Plan
Progress Report were also presented to AC during the financial year for review and deliberation.

In addition, during the Audit Committee meeting, the outsourced internal audit function reported its staff strength,
qualification and experience as well as continuous professional education for the Audit Committee’s review.

In addition to the above, for the purpose of compliance with ISO 9001and ISO 14001 Quality and Environmental
Management Systems, internal quality audits are carried out by in-house independent personnel and
surveillance audit is conducted by an independent certification body to provide assurance on compliance with
established ISO procedures.

The cost incurred in maintaining the outsourced internal audit function for the financial year ended 31 December
2021 was amounted to RM 31,176

ASSURANCE PROVIDED BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND PERSON PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

During the meeting of the Board, the performance of the Group was reviewed and deliberated, including, but not
limited to, the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control system in relation to the
business objectives of the Group.

In addition, in line with the Guidelines, the CED, being the highest-ranking executive in the Company and
the person primarily responsible for the management of the financial affairs of the Company, had provided
assurance to the Board in writing stating that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems have
operated adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, to meet the Group’s objectives during the financial
year under review.
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OPINION AND CONCLUSION

Based on the review of the risk management results and process, results of the internal audit activities,
monitoring and review mechanism stipulated above, coupled with the written assurance provided by the CED,
the Board is of the opinion that the risk management and internal control system are satisfactory based on the
existing nature of business and scale of operations of the Group, to safeguard the interest of the stakeholders
and the Group’s assets, and there had been no material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would
require disclosure in the Group’s Annual Report. The Board continues to take pertinent measures to sustain and,
where required, to improve the Group’s risk management and internal control system in meeting the Group’s
business objectives.

The Board is committed towards maintaining an effective risk management and internal control system
throughout the Group and strives for continuous improvements to further enhance the Group’s risk management
and internal control system. Notwithstanding this, the Board will continue to evaluate and manage the significant
business risks faced by the Group in order to achieve its mission, vision, core values, strategies and business
objectives.

ASSURANCE PROVIDED BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to paragraph 15.23 of the Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements, the External Auditors have reviewed
this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control. Their review was performed in accordance with
Audit and Assurance Practice Guides (“AAPG”) 3 : Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in the Annual Report, issued by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (“MIA”). Based on their review, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that this Statement is neither prepared, in all material aspects, in accordance with the disclosures
required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Guidelines and Practice 10.1 and 10.2 of the MCCG 2021 to be set out,
nor factually incorrect.
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Introduction

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Ornapaper Berhad (“Ornapaper”) acknowledges the significance of
constantly developing and improving the business operations in a sustainable and responsible manner. The
Board believes and remains committed to create sustainable value throughout its businesses’ value chain by
improving the core business principles and operations. The continuous creation of sustainable value shall
drive the long-term business growth of Ornapaper Berhad and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) as well as the
establishment of mutually favourable relationships with its stakeholders.

Notwithstanding the swift changes in the business and operational landscapes, operating sustainably is an
integral component of our business strategy that we continue to place great emphasis on in striving to attain the
expectations of our customers while reducing the impact on environment and producing a better life for present
and future generations. Continuous efforts are dedicated by the Board to embrace and enhance the sustainable
business practices of the Group by having its businesses’ operating strategies and corporate culture being
formulated and continuously aligned to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”) developed by the United
Nations to promote prosperity while protecting the environment.

The Board is committed to continuously encourage good sustainability practices, update the sustainability
progress and engage openly and responsively with the Group’s stakeholders through transparent sustainability
reporting that captures the economic, environmental and social aspects of its businesses’ operations. The Board
recognises that stakeholder engagement plays a vital role to ensure the businesses pursued by the Group is
sustainable in the long term. Through this Sustainability Statement, the Board provides the stakeholders a better
insight on its approach to create sustainable long-term value for stakeholders as well as the progress in meeting
these commitments. The Group is committed to conduct the businesses and operations in an equitable and
accountable manner across the value chain to ultimately achieve results that are sustainable for the future
generations.

The Board always recognises that economic value is generated by maximising profits and shareholders’ value
while holding on a greater responsibility as a global citizen to create social value. Apart from strengthening the
financial performances of the businesses the Group is operating in, the Board also recognises the importance
of upholding great standards of business conducts in respect of governance, economic, environment and
social aspects, which are vital for the Group to endure in this competitive, challenging and evolving business
environment, in which to generate value for a wide array of stakeholders on long term sustainable manner. It s,
therefore, the underlying value of the Group to achieve optimum equilibrium between short-term financial
performance and its long-term business sustainability and value creation to meet corporate objectives and
stakeholders’ expectations.

The Group remain dedicated to creating value by transforming and evolving with the market, the industry as well
as the nation. The Board is mindful of the Group’s role as a responsible citizen in securing a sustainable future
for the Group and the communities it lives in and interacts with in an era where social capitalism, climate change,
ocean conservation, water scarcity, food insecurity, poverty and public health are ever-increasing global issues.
The Board is dedicated towards embracing good sustainability practices, by continuously integrated such
practices into the working environment and culture, business processes and strategy making process in
order to develop sustainable businesses that bring constructive impact to the economy, environment and
greater community. Hence, the Group is committed to be accountable and transparent in the sustainability
performance.

Annual Report 2021

67



Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200201006032 (573695-W)

Sustainability Statement

The global COVID-19 pandemic that has been on-going for two years has brought about significant disruption
affecting almost all sectors of economies across the globe. Various stringent lockdown measures implemented
by governments around the world to contain the spread of the pandemic have led to various levels of business
suspension as well as uncertainty globally. Despite the challenging business environment faced by the Group,
we endeavour to conduct the business operations according to pragmatic principles and sustainable practices
with a long-term sustainability strategy that integrates economic, governance, environmental and social
considerations. The Group remains steadfast and strives to adapt, innovate and take up the essential measures
to navigate through this incredibly challenging time.

The Board of Ornapaper Group is pleased to present the Sustainability Statement for the financial year ended
31 December 2021. The Sustainability Statement demonstrates our commitment towards sustainability by
developing and implementing key sustainability matters that are pertinent to the Group’s nature and business
operations, with the ultimate aim of creating more values to our businesses, society and stakeholders. The
Sustainability Statement is prepared pursuant to paragraph 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 of Practice Note 9 of the Main
Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). In particular,
the management of material sustainability matters is disclosed, in all material aspects, in accordance with Part
Il of Practice Note 9 of MMLR and Sustainability Reporting Guide issued by Bursa Securities (“the Guide”) on
the content of the Sustainability Statement.

Scope of the Statement

The contents of this Sustainability Statement primarily include activities carried out during the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this Statement. This Statement covers the economic,
environmental and social management and performance of the Group. The Board observes the sustainability
requirements in which the Statement defines stakeholder engagement, materiality assessment, sustainability
achievement, and the information of significant economic, environmental and social impacts for assessment of
the Group’s management and performance.

The disclosures of the corporate governance practices and compliance with relevant provisions and
requirements per MMLR and Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 2021 are made in the Corporate
Governance Report and Corporate Governance Overview Statement in the Annual Report.

The Group is involved in the manufacturing of paper based packaging and stationery products as well as
provision of logistics services in Malaysia with the core operating segment, i.e. paper packaging business,
encompasses activities related to manufacturing and sales of corrugated boards and carton boxes, contributed
to more than 90% of the Group’s total revenue.

As at the date of this Statement, information disclosed in this Statement involves identification, management
and reporting of sustainability matters and performances of five (5) of the subsidiaries, namely Ornapaper
Industry (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“Ornapaper Melaka”), Ornapaper Industry (Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd. (“Ornapaper Batu
Pahat”), Ornapaper Industry (Perak) Sdn. Bhd. (“Ornapaper Perak”), Ornapaper Industry (Johor) Sdn. Bhd.
(“Ornapaper Johor”) and Tripack Packaging (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“Tripack”) (collectively referred to as "the
Companies", individually referred to as "the Company"). These five (5) subsidiaries drive the paper packaging
business segment of the Group which contributes the highest proportion of revenue to the Group throughout the
years thus far.
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Sustainability Principles

As the highest governance body within the Group, the Board undertakes the ultimate accountability for the
integration of sustainability in the Group, including sustainability-related strategy and performance. The Group
is dedicated to promoting sustainability and continuously integrates it into its working environment, business
processes and strategy making process. The Group remains committed to meeting the various stakeholders’
interests while achieving its strategic objectives by upholding its accountability and transparency in its
sustainability performance based on the following principles instilled by the Board:

* To observe and comply with all relevant legislation, regulations, recommended trade practice and code of
practice applicable and relevant to the Group;

»  To consider sustainability matters and integrate these considerations into the Group’s business operations
and when making and implementing business strategies;

* To manage sustainability matters in structured and systematic manner, whereby sustainability matters
are embedded throughout the Group and to be documented, continuously assessed and managed with
reporting to the Board on scheduled interval or as and when the materiality of the sustainability matters
requires such reporting;

*  To continuously promote, train and communicate with all employees, suppliers, business partners and other
relevant stakeholders to ensure that they are aware of, and are committed to, implementing and measuring
sustainability activities as part of the Group’s or their strategy, taking into consideration economic,
environment, social and governance aspects;

»  To continuously engage and communicate with all relevant stakeholders for the identification, assessment
and management of material sustainable issues; and

«  To strive to improve the Group’s sustainability performance over times.

Sustainability Policy

The Board remains committed to the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development adopted by the United Nation.
The Sustainability Policy established by the Board is guided by the 17 Sustainable Development Goals
(“SDGs"), otherwise known as the Global Goals, which are established by the United Nations to address a range
of social and economic development issues, such as poverty, hunger, health, education, climate change, gender
equality, water, sanitation, energy, environment and social justice.

The 17 SDGs are integrated, that is, they recognise that action in one area will affect outcomes in others, and
that development must balance social, economic and environmental sustainability. Such SDGs are a universal
call for action to create a world that is comprehensively sustainable by 2030 to end poverty, improve health
and education, reduce inequality and injustice as well as address the urgency of climate change. Albeit the
global COVID-19 pandemic has unleashed an unprecedented crisis in health, economic and social which is
threatening lives and livelihoods and making the achievement of the SDGs even more challenging, the Group
in still dedicated to driving accountable and sustainable business practices throughout the organisation by
striking a balance between managing the financial performance and contributing to the social and environmental
impacts in ensuring high standards of governance practiced across the business operations.
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The Board had formalised a formal Sustainability Policy which strengthens the Group’s commitment to
achieving an equilibrium between being at the forefront of our industry and meeting the commercial expectations
of our stakeholders. The said Sustainability Policy entails:

*  Compliance of high ethical standards of suppliers;

»  Compliance to Environmental and Occupational Safety and Health regulations;

»  Adoption of “Green” principles in procurement and manufacturing practices;

* Reduction of material consumption through recycling of waste materials;

* Management and disposal of waste in a responsible manner;

* Commitment to ensure a safe and healthy working environment;

*  Fair treatment of employees;

»  Continuous training and development of employees;

«  Contributions towards local authorities and communities;

* Uphold business excellence and continuity;

+  Commitment to continual research & development in achieving product innovation and enhancing product
quality;

« Continuous selection of potential supplier at significant location of operations to optimise cost and sales
value;

»  Customer profile diversification to ensure economic interest of all relevant stakeholders are preserved and
prevention from loss of key customers; and

+  Compliance to better practices under the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2017 (“MCCG”).
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Governance Structure and Process

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for integration of the recommended sustainable economic,
environment and social practices throughout the Group to ensure business strategies of the Group are
developed with regard to the sustainability consideration, and to ensure sustainability performance are
monitored for its accomplishment from time to time. The governance structure in relation to the Group’s
sustainability management is guided by the Guide and Toolkit: Governance issued by Bursa Securities with
necessary adaption based on the nature and scale of the businesses of the Group.

Good governance plays a key role for the Group to operate in an accountable and sustainable manner. The
Group’s commitment towards sustainable business practices is imputed throughout all levels of its organisation.
At the leadership level, the Board, Executive Directors and Management recognise the importance of ensuring
good sustainable economic, environment and social practices are comprehended and implemented by all levels
of organisation.

To ensure such commitment of good sustainable economic, environment and social practices is embedded
throughout the Group, the Board put in place formal structure to ensure accountability, oversight and review in
the identification, management and reporting of sustainability matters and performance. Such formal structure
is important to ensure that execution of the sustainability initiatives at all levels of organisation and business
units are aligned with the Board’s sustainability and business strategies with reporting at predetermined
intervals so that the Group is able to response timely with the sustainability risks and opportunities applicable
to the Group. The responsibilities for identification, management and reporting of sustainability matters and
performance are delegated to the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee.

The Board has formalised the sustainability principles, policies and processes envisaged by the Board
through the establishment of Sustainability Policy. Furthermore, formal governance structure, based on the
existing geographical scope, scale and nature of the businesses the Group is pursuing, for the identification,
management and reporting of sustainability matters and performance of the Group is established by the Board
in the following manner:

[ The Board }
I
|
{ Audit Committee }
Risk and Sustainability
Management Committee
[

{ Heads of Department }

The governance structure clearly defines the roles and responsibilities expected from the Board, the
Audit Committee, Risk and Sustainability Management Committee, Heads of Department and Key Risk and
Sustainability Officer. In a nutshell, the Board assumes the ultimate responsibility for sustainability management
and performance within the Group while the Audit Committee is tasked with the duties to oversee the
sustainability management and performance of the Group for reporting to the Board.
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The Risk and Sustainability Management Committee, chaired by the Chief Executive Director and Executive
Director of Ornapaper Berhad, is tasked with the following duties: -

Implement the sustainability strategy and management policy as approved by the Board,;

Lead and implement the process of sustainability matters identification, assessment and management and
devising appropriate action plan in cases where sustainability issues are not adequately or effectively
addressed and communicate proposed action plans to the Heads of Departments;

To conduct periodic review of all sustainability matters of the Group (at least on an annual basis) and
determine the adequacy of the response and the current standing of the sustainability matters and to report
the review results (including material sustainability matters) and recommendations to the Audit Committee;

To manage stakeholder engagement for input for assessment and communication of results of review and
response;

To implement the material sustainability matters’ indicator and the target and performance monitoring
thereof and the preparation of sustainability disclosures as required by laws and/or rules, and to report to
the Audit Committee for review;

To oversee the Heads of Departments in the implementation of systems of sustainability management;
To update the Audit Committee on changes to the material sustainability matters on periodical basis (at least
on annual basis) respectively or when appropriate (due to change in external environment or internally) and

the course of action to be taken by management in managing the changes; and

To ensure relevant sustainability trainings are provided for appropriate level of employees to cultivate a
positive attitude and promote correct approach toward sustainability management.

As for the Heads of Department, their primary responsibilities are to manage sustainability matters of the
business processes under his/her control and to assist the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee
with the implementation of the process of sustainability matters identification, assessment, management and
monitoring of all sustainability matters.

The sustainability matters management process is established by the Board in compliance with the Guide and
Toolkit: Materiality Assessment issued by Bursa Securities with necessary adaption based on the nature and
scale of the businesses of the Group, taking into consideration the business strategies promoted by the Board,
as follows: -

Identification of the intended stakeholder groups and sub-groups, the focus areas expected by the intended
stakeholders and engagement objective(s) for each stakeholder group through Stakeholders’ Mapping and
the establishment of the Stakeholders’ Profile;
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* The stakeholders identified for each significant business segment and geographical segment are prioritised
in relation to its influence over and dependence on the Group so that the Group can put in more effort on
stakeholder groups that have higher influence and/or dependency and the concerns of such stakeholders
will carry greater weight. The prioritisation of the stakeholders is conducted by the Risk and Sustainability
Management Committee by using Stakeholder Prioritisation Matrix, whereby each stakeholder identified
are assessed by using the influence and dependence criteria and rating scale established by the Board. The
results of the prioritisation can be used to determine the level of engagement to be employed by the Group
with respective stakeholders (from collaborate/ empower to keep informed) based on the perceived
influence and dependency of each stakeholder group;

» Identification of sustainability matters for each significant business segment and geographical segment via
internal sources (through internal documentations as well as information system and internal stakeholders’
communication via engagement medium and direct communication) and from external sources (through
internal documentations, management information system, trusted public domains, correspondences with
external stakeholders and external stakeholders’ communication via engagement medium and direct
communication);

« Sustainability matters identified for each significant business segment and geographical segment via
internal and external sources are refined, consolidated and categorised into respective sustainability
categories determined by the Board and enlisted in the Sustainability Matters Listing, detailing the influential
and dependent internal and external stakeholders;

»  Sustainability matters categorised in the Sustainability Matters Listing are subjected to internal materiality
assessment by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee in order to prioritise the sustainability
matters for assessment by internal and external stakeholders.

Sustainability issues considered material if:

+ it has significant economic, environmental and social impacts on the Group from the organisation’s point
of view;

+ substantively influence the assessments and decisions of stakeholders from the stakeholders’ point of
view; and

+ it has significant economic, environmental and social impacts that affect the ability to meet the needs of
the present and future generations.

The internal materiality assessment entails the assessment by the Risk and Sustainability Management
Committee based on the rating scale established by the Board on the significance of each sustainability
matters on the revenue, cost, reputation, strategic and operational risk and business opportunities criteria.

From internal and external stakeholders’ perspective, stakeholders’ assessment of the sustainability
matters is based on the significance of such matters to influence on the assessment and decision by
respective stakeholders. The stakeholders’ assessment of the sustainability matters is obtained during
stakeholders’ engagement, either through direct communication by Risk and Sustainability Management
Committee or Heads of Departments, via the rating system established by the Board.

+ Subsequent to the assessment process, sustainable matters identified above are subjected to risk

management policy and process established by the Board for the assessment and management of the risk
and opportunities identified.
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In the context of the sustainability matters management, the current standing of sustainability matters is
assessed for its adequacy and effectiveness by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee and
to formulate management response (if existing controls are inadequate or ineffective) to mitigate the
sustainability risk or optimise the sustainability opportunities, in line with the risk appetite and business
strategies established by the Board. Please refer to Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
on the risk management system employed by the Group in the identification, management and monitoring
of business risks.

*  For the management of material sustainability matters, the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee
to develop position and response with respect to each material sustainability matters in the following
manners:

+ developing policies and procedures;

« implementing various initiatives, measures or action plans;

+ to comply with applicable laws and regulations;

+ setting indicators, goals, targets and timeframe in line with the strategic objectives; and

+ implementing new, or changing existing systems, to capture, report, analyse, and manage data
requirements.

The Risk and Sustainability Management Committee to monitor the current standing (including but not limited
to, indicators, target and actual performance) and responses of the material sustainability matters and actual
performance and to report to the Audit Committee on yearly basis for review and for their recommendation to the
Board for review and approval.

Stakeholders’ Engagement

The Board recognises and admits that contribution and support of the internal and external stakeholders
are utmost important for realisation of the Group’s missions and long-term business sustainability and
excellence. Therefore, a stakeholder-driven approach to sustainability serves as a foundation in developing our
sustainability strategy and reporting. It is vital for us to maintain a good degree of communication, understanding
and relationship with stakeholders through multiple communication platforms, continuous dialogue and sharing
of information with the stakeholders to ensure the success and long-term growth of our businesses.

The Group recognises and values each of the employees, customers, as well as other stakeholders, and
believes by understanding their interests and needs, it fosters lasting and mutually beneficial relationships
that enhances the morale, reputation and business performances while delivering sustainable value to the
stakeholders. By establishing effective and transparent lines of communication with the stakeholders, the Group
aims to address their concerns in a collaborative manner that meets both the stakeholders’ interests and needs
as well as the Group’s vision for sustainable growth.

It is on this basis that the Board is pursuing the sustainable strategy of continuous engagement with internal and
external stakeholders who is dependent on and/or influenced by the activities undertaken by the Group and to
ensure that such engagements are to include all internal and external stakeholders across the value chain and
to respond proactively, via formal and informal channels, to the concerns and views of respective stakeholder
groups. By actively engaging with all stakeholders, the Board is able to identify risks and opportunities in the
way the businesses of the Group are carried out. During such engagement, the Group is able to validate the
sustainable matters identified by the Management of the Group.
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During the financial year under review and up to the date of this Statement, with regard to the sustainability
assessment, management and monitoring process, the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee relied
on the informal channels (such as, meetings and face-to-face communication) employed by the Heads of
Department and Executive Directors, supported by formal channels of communication (such as, employees’
performance appraisal) to engage with the stakeholders.

The Board acknowledges that the stakeholder engagement engaged by the Risk and Sustainability
Management Committee can be further enhanced by employing preferred level of engagement per
stakeholders’ profile at the preferred frequency as determined by the Board so that key topics and concerns of
respective stakeholder groups are communicated timely and reliably to the correct governance body of the
Group to respond to such topics and concerns raised. The Group’s stakeholder engagement process is guided
by the Guide and Toolkit: Stakeholder Engagement issued by Bursa Securities with necessary adaption based
on the nature and scale of the businesses of the Group.

For Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack with
sustainability assessment performed, the Board had determined that, through stakeholder mapping and profiling
exercise conducted by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee and Heads of Department and
reported to them subsequently, the following stakeholders are dependent on and have influence over Ornapaper
Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack:

Stakeholder Engagement Objective(s) Preferred Engagement Frequency of

Group

Method(s)

Engagement

Employees

To ensure fair
engagement of salary
To establish career
pathway for workforce at
all levels

To have a safe and
healthy working
environment

To strike for work life
balance

Performance appraisal
Employee’s self-evaluation
Memorandum

Electronic mail system
Meetings

Employees' dialogue

Annually
Ongoing

Board of
Directors

To ensure business
strategy take into
consideration of
sustainable practices

To convey accurate
financial and non-
financial information for
decision making

To comply with good
corporate governance
To ensure cyber security
and continuous safety of
organization data and
assets (including suppliers
and customers)

Committee meetings
Board of Directors meeting

Annually
Ongoing

Management

To ensure sustainable of
human resources in
pursuing of company's
goals

Meetings
Memorandum
Electronic mail system

Annually
Quarterly
Monthly
Ongoing

Financial
Institutions

To demonstrate financial
sustainability

To understand and
comply with laws

Annual report
Public announcements
Meetings

Annually
Ongoing
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Stakeholder Engagement Objective(s) Preferred Engagement Frequency of
Group Method(s) Engagement
Government e To ensure full compliance o Official submission » Ongoing
with all relevant laws and o Official letter
regulations ¢ Public dialogue involving
government officials
e Public announcements
e Telephone conversation
e Face-to-face meetings
e Electronic mail system
e Periodical audit
Local e To ensure full compliance o Official submission e Ongoing
Authority with relevant laws and o Official letter
regulations e Public dialogue
e Public announcements
e Telephone conversation
e Face-to-face meetings
o Electronic mail system
e Periodical audit
Customers e To improve customer's o Face-to-face meetings ¢ Ongoing
satisfaction o Electronic mail system
e To meet potential e Telephone conversation
customer’s requirements e Customer's audits
e To ensure sufficient and o Letter of complaint
healthy manpower « Official letter
support e SCAR
e To sustain good product
quality even during
lockdown/ conditiona
lockdown
Suppliers e To ensure all materials e Supplier's evaluation and e Ongoing
are RoHS compliance/ appraisal
environmental friendly o Meetings
e To strive for reasonable o Conflict of Interest Policy
price materials and e Code of Conduct
services at acceptable o Electronic mail system
quality, consistent and e Telephone conversation
on-time delivery « Official letter/
e To ensure safety and memorandum
health during loading and o Supplier audit
unloading process and
delivery journey
e To ensure product quality
and safety
e To ensure no discruption
in supply of materials
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Stakeholder Engagement Objective(s) Preferred Engagement Frequency of
Group Method(s) Engagement
Investors e To demonstrate financial e Annual report e Annually
sustainability ¢ Annual general meeting * Quarterly
o Shareholders' e Ongoing
communication
e Press release and public
announcements
Certification | « To ensure compliance o Audit * Ongoing
Body with ISO 9001: 2015 and o Electronic mail system
14001: 2015 standard o Telephone conversation
e Reports
Local e To ensure pollution and o Corporate social e Ongoing
community social ills free community responsibility programme
o Face-to-face meetings
e Press release
o Official letters
o Electronic mail system
e Telephone conversation
Media e To minimize negative e Press release ¢ Ongoing
reporting and protect e Telephone conversation
company image
e To ensure reporting
accuracy
Trade e To seek for protection of o Meetings ¢ Ongoing
Association employer's interests and e Forums
opportunities in business
trade
e Sharing of industrial
update

Subsequent to the stakeholder groups identification with respective engagement methods proposed,
stakeholders prioritisation exercise was conducted for Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper
Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack to rank respective stakeholder groups’ influence over and/or dependence
on Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack based on
influence over and dependence rating criteria and scale approved by the Board. The results of the stakeholders
prioritisation exercise for Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and
Tripack are tabulated in the following Stakeholder Prioritisation Matrix with recommended level of engagement
for respective quadrums:
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Stakeholder Prioritisation (Ornapaper Melaka)
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Stakeholder Prioritisation (Tripack)
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Sustainability Management Activity

Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack had performed the
following activities in relation to the identification, management and reporting of sustainability matters and
performance:

» Identification of the internal and external stakeholders of manufacturing activities that have influence over
and dependence on Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor
and Tripack through Stakeholder’'s Mapping and with individual Stakeholder Profile established for each
stakeholder identified.

* Internal and external stakeholders of manufacturing activities identified by the Risk and Sustainability
Management Committee were assessed and prioritised for its degree of influence over and dependence on
Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack based on the
agreed upon criteria and rating scale (“Stakeholder Prioritisation Exercise”).

* The Risk and Sustainability Management Committee performed identification of the sustainability matters
through internal sources and informal stakeholders’ engagement through direct communication with
relevant internal and external stakeholders by Heads of Department.

* The Risk and Sustainability Management Committee performed the internal materiality assessment by
using predetermined criteria and rating scale to prioritise the sustainability matters for assessment by
internal and external stakeholders and to determine the significance of the sustainability matters from the
Group’s perspective (“Internal Materiality Assessment”).
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* The degree of significance of the sustainable matters to influence on the assessment and decision by
internal and external stakeholders were performed by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee
by using informal stakeholders’ engagement through direct communication with relevant internal and
external stakeholders by Heads of Department.

* The results of the Stakeholder Prioritisation exercise, internal materiality assessment and degree of
significance of the sustainable matters to influence on the assessment and decision by internal and external
stakeholders were used to prioritise sustainability matters and identification of material sustainable matters
by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee. An identified sustainability matter is considered as
material if it is above the material threshold established by the Board.

Material Sustainability Matters

The Group focuses strongly on delivering value to shareholders, practicing good governance, maximising
contributions to stakeholders and minimising environmental footprint. The Group’s material sustainability
matters were identified through the materiality assessment process, whereby the Economic, Environmental
and Social (‘EES”) matters relevant and important to the Group’s long-term sustainability were identified and
prioritised through structured process and assessment mechanism as approved by the Board, guided by the
Guide Toolkit: Materiality Assessment issued by Bursa Securities with necessary adaption based on the nature
and scale of the businesses of the Group on sustainability context, materiality, completeness and stakeholder
inclusiveness through a cycle of identification, prioritisation, validation and review.

A list of material sustainability issues was identified and determined by the sustainability matters assessment
and prioritisation exercise of Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper
Johor and Tripack undertaken by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee that reflected the
critical sustainable considerations expected of Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak,
Ornapaper Johor and Tripack in respect of the business and geographical extent Ornapaper Melaka, Ornapaper
Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack Pahat are operating in and highlighted the
expectations and concerns of stakeholder groups. The sustainability matters are rated as “Material”, “Low and
Medium” and “Not Material”, through material matrix, in respect of its significance from the Management’s
perspective on the impact as well as all significant stakeholders’ perspectives in terms of its influence on the
respective stakeholders’ assessments and decisions.

The final list of sustainability matters together with the details of identification and assessment of Ornapaper
Melaka, Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack were reviewed by the
Audit Committee and reported to the Board for its approval to ensure effective sustainability management and
monitoring.
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Social Materiality Matrix
(Ornapaper Melaka)
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Social Materiality Matrix
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Significance of Group's Social Impacts

The same sustainability matter is identified and considered material by the Management of Ornapaper Melaka,
Ornapaper Batu Pahat, Ornapaper Perak, Ornapaper Johor and Tripack as well as the stakeholder groups,
details as shown in the table below:

Aspect Boundary
Sustainability Definition Internal External Reéel:\)/gnt Corresponding
Matter Stakeholders Stakeholders Goals Risk Register

Outbreak  of | Anticipation, » Board of » Customer 3 o Compliance
Diseases recognition, Directors « Certification L | with MITI
(Occupational evaluation » Management Body 41 f‘ Requirements
Safety and | and control » Employees » Government
Health — | of hazards « Supplier
Social) arising in or o Media

from the « Financial

workplace Institutions

that could

impair the

health and

well-being of

workers and

stakeholders
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Safe and Healthy Working Environment and Management (Social)

Health and safety are of paramount importance to the Group. As a socially responsible business, the Group’s
long-term sustainability hinged heavily on the safety and well-being of our employees and not to a lesser extent,
the stakeholders. A safe and healthy workplace is not only the fundamental right of the employees but also the
relevant stakeholder groups, such as customers, suppliers and contractors. Hence, the Group is committed to
provide and maintain a productive, dynamic yet safe and healthy workplace and learning environment, as far as
is reasonably practicable, to all employees and relevant stakeholders by minimising the risk of accidents, injury
and exposure to health hazards.

The Group places utmost importance on strict and continuous compliance with all relevant safety and health
related legislative requirements, including but not limited to the following:

» Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994

» Occupational Safety and Health (Safety and Health Committee) Regulations 1996

» Poisons Act 1952

» Poisons (Sodium Hydroxide) Regulations 1962

» Fire Services Act 1988

» Occupational Safety and Health (Classification, Labelling and Safety Data Sheet of Hazardous
Chemicals) Regulations 2013

» Occupational Safety and Health (Noise Exposure) Regulations 2019

» Factories and Machinery Act 1967 (and its orders and regulations)

The safety and health management at workplace is managed by the Safety and Health Committee (made up of
representatives from the Management and the employees) established by the respective subsidiaries of the
Group. The safety and health management at workplace is also guided by a Group Safety and Health Policy
approved by the Chief Executive Director. Safety and health rules and regulations are established by the Safety
and Health Committee and approved by the Management to ensure the operational activities are carried out in
a proper and safe manner to minimise industrial accidents.

The emphasis on importance of safety and health of our employees and stakeholders remained to be one of the
Group’s top priorities throughout the COVID-19 pandemic as we adapt to the new normal whilst providing
uninterrupted supply and services to our customers and ensuring business continuity and resilience. In this
respect, the Group implemented various COVID-19 preventive measures in compliance with the guidelines and
Standard Operating Procedures (“SOPs”) mandated by the Malaysian Government in curbing the spread
of COVID-19 virus in workplace to ensure business continuity while safeguarding the safety and health of
employees, customers, suppliers, contractors, visitors and other relevant stakeholders.

A safe and healthy culture at the workplace has been embedded within our day-to-day business operation
activities. To foster the desired safety and health objectives and outcomes with minimal industrial accidents and
incidents occurred, the Safety and Health Committee shall oversee the due observance of safety and health
rules and regulations established and practiced at workplace and to promote safe and healthy conducts and
environment at workplace. The Group strives to work towards its goals in achieving “A Zero Accident” workforce,
meanwhile, creating “A Good, Safe and Pleasant” environment to the employees and relevant stakeholders in
order to prevent unnecessary accidents and injuries at workplace.
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Safety and health audits are conducted by the Safety and Health Committee on all departments of the
Companies to ensure that concerns or incidents of non-compliances of the safety and health rules and
regulations by relevant stakeholders are identified promptly and corrective actions are implemented swiftly.
Identification of anticipated hazards and assessment of corresponding risks to safety and health arising from
existing or proposed work environment are performed by the Safety and Health Committee with planned
controls formulated to eliminate hazards or control risks at regular interval.

Furthermore, scheduled meetings of the Safety and Health Committee are held at predetermined interval in
accordance with the required safety and health related rules and regulations. Such scheduled meetings are
conducted to promote an effective communication on ways to perform jobs/ tasks in a better and safer manner
at the workplace, as well as to discuss and monitor the trend of accident or incident and immediately investigate
near-miss accident or incident, dangerous occurrence, occupational poisoning or occupational disease that are
occurred at workplace and to resolve with measurements proposed, with the aim of maintaining a hazard free
workplace.

Awareness programmes for safety and health are established and implemented to ensure that all
relevant stakeholders are competent to uphold the safety and health during the execution of their duties and
responsibilities. To promote safety and health culture among the employees, regular safety and health related
trainings are conducted and provided to all employees to keep them abreast with the current safety and health
practices with necessary precautions to be taken in place to minimise accidents or incidents in workplace.
Workplace safety procedures and instructions in operating forklift and various types of machines in production
floor are established too in guiding the employees to operate the forklift, production machines and equipment in
a safe and sound manner.

As safety measures, safety notices/signboards and indicators are placed at strategic and hazard-prone
locations as well as on production equipment to convey safety messages and potential safety hazard to the
employees, customers, suppliers, contractors and other visitors. Floor signages are placed at the strategic